
AGENDA
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS
Pat Bryson Municipal Hall

201 North Brushy Street — Leander, Texas

Thursday — December 17, 2015 at 7:00 PM

1. Open meeting, Invocation, Pledges of Allegiance

2. Roll Call

a Staff Comments:

4. Citizen Comments: Three (3) minutes allowed per speaker
Please turn in speaker request form before the meeting begins

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION I
5. Approval of the minutes: December 3, 2015

6. Interlocal Purchasing Agreement with Harris County Department of Education

7. Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Greatwood, Section 1

8. License Agreement for the installation and maintenance of landscaping and irrigation within the
CR 280 right-of-way within the Greatwood Subdivision

PUBLIC HEARING: NO ACTION

9. Second Public Hearing on the proposed annexation of 37.079 acres, more or less, of land generally
located west of Ronald Reagan Blvd. and north of the South San Gabriel River in Williamson County,
Texas

10. Second Public Hearing on the proposed annexation of multiple tracts of land totaling 229.22 acres,
more or less, generally located north of Hero Way and west of Ronald Reagan Blvd. in Williamson
County, Texas

11. Second Public Hearing on the proposed annexation multiple tracts of land totaling 117.5 acres, more
or less, generally located along and abutting Hero Way (formerly County Road 269) in Williamson
County, Texas pursuant to the terms and expiration of Development Agreements under Section
43.035, Texas Local Government Code

Mayor — Christopher Fielder Place 4— Ron Abruzzese
Place 1 — Andrea Navarrette (Mayor Pro Tern) Place 5—Jeff Seller
Place 2— Michelle Stephenson Place 6— Troy Hill
Place 3— Shanan Shepherd City Manager — Kent Cagle



PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION I
12. Public Hearing on Zoning Case 15-Z-020: Consider a zoning change a parcel of land generally located

to the southeast of the intersection of San Gabriel Parkway and Bagdad Road/CR279 for 1.508 acres,
more or less from LC-2-B, Local Commercial to LC-3-A, Local Commercial Leander, Williamson County,
Texas Applicant: Danny Martin on behalf of JSL Commercial Investments, LLC

Action on Zoning Case 15-Z-020: amending Ordinance 05-01 8, the Composite Zoning Ordinance for
a parcel of land generally located to the southeast of the intersection of San Gabriel Parkway and Bagdad
Road/CR279 for 1.508 acres, more or less from LC-2-B, Local Commercial to LC-3-A, Local Commercial,
Leander, Williamson County, Texas

13. Public Hearing on Zoning Case 15-Z-023: Consider a zoning change of a lot located at 600 Municipal
Drive; legally described as Lot 4, Block A, Leander Heights Section 2 Subdivision for 2.62 acres, more or
less from SFU/MH-2-B, Single Family Urban/Manufactured Home to PUD, Planned Unit Development with
a base zoning district of MF-2-A, Multi-Family, Leander, Williamson County, Texas
Applicant: David Smith on behalf of Municipal Texas Investment Group, LLC

Action on Zoning Case 15-Z-023: amending Ordinance 05-01 8, the Composite Zoning Ordinance for
a lot located at 600 MunicIpal Drive; legally described as Lot 4, Block A, Leander Heights Section 2
Subdivision for 2.62 acres, more or less from SFU/MH-2-B, Single Family Urban/Manufactured Home to
PUD, Planned Unit Development with a base zoning district of MF-2-A, Multi-Family, Leander, Williamson
County, Texas

14. Public Hearing on Zoning Case 15-Z-032: Consider a zoning change for two parcels of land located at 602
South Gabriel Drive for 6.19 acres, more or less from SFS-2-B, Single Family Suburban to SFT-2-B, Single
Family Townhome, Leander, Williamson County, Texas
Applicant: Ronald E & Serita Kay Butler

Action on Zoning Case 15-Z-032: amending Ordinance 05-01 8, the Composite Zoning Ordinance for
two parcels of land located at 602 South Gabriel Drive for 6.19 acres, more or less from SFS-2-B, Single
Family Suburban to SFT-2-B, Single Family Townhome, Leander, Williamson County, Texas

15. Public Hearing on Zoning Case 15-TOD-Z-035: Consider a zoning change for one parcel of land generally
located to the south of the intersection of US 183 and 183A Toll Road for 4.654 acres, more or less, from
PUDITOD, Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development to amend the PUD to designate the
base zoning district as GC-3-B, General Commercial as permitted by the SmartCode, Leander, Williamson
County, Texas Applicant: Bruce Nakfoor on behalf of West Tex Trading Retire, Ltd

Action on Zoning Case 15-TOD-Z-035: amending Ordinance 05-01 8, the Composite Zoning Ordinance for
one parcel of land generally located to the south of the intersection of US 183 and 1 83A Toll Road for 4.654
acres, more or less, from PUDITOD, Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development to amend the
PUD to designate the base zoning district as GC-3-B, General Commercial as permitted by the SmartCode,
Leander, Williamson County, Texas

16. Public Hearing on Zoning and Subdivision Cases 15-Z-012, 15-CP-003 & 15-PP-007: Consider approval of
the Bar W Commercial Concept Plan, Preliminary Plat and PUD zoning for 49.737 acres, more or less,
generally located to the southeast of the intersection of Ronald W. Reagan Blvd. and SH 29, from Interim
zoning of SFR-1-B, Single Family Rural to PUD, Planned Unit Development with a base zoning district of
GC-3-C, General Commercial, Leander, Williamson County, Texas
Applicant David Armbrust (‘Armbrust & Brown, PLL on behalf of Howard Barklcy Wedemeyer and AR 2
Retail, Ltd



Action on Zoning and Subdivision Cases 1 5-Z-01 2, 1 5-CP-003 & 1 5-PP-007: Consider approval of
the Bar W Commercial Concept Plan, Preliminary Plat and PUD zoning for 49.737 acres, more or less,
generally located to the southeast of the intersection of Ronald W. Reagan Blvd. and SI-I 29, from Interim
zoning of SFR-1-B, Single Family Rural to PUD, Planned Unit Development with a base zoning district of
GC-3-C, General Commercial, Leander, Williamson County, Texas

REGULAR AGENDA

17. Second Reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case 15-2-010: amending Ordinance 05-01 8, the
Composite Zoning Ordinance for 51.84 acres, more or less, located at 1208 5. Bagdad Road from
MF-2-B, Multi-Family and GC-3-C, General Commercial to PUD, Planned Unit Development with a
base zoning district of MF-2-A, Multi Family, Leander, Williamson County, Texas

18. Consider approval of funds for a sculpture in Benbrook Ranch Park
Sponsored by Council Member Seiler

19. Consider Task Order HVJ-03 with HVJ Associates for professional engineering services including
Planning, Design, Award, and Construction Phase Services for Street Maintenance and Rehabilitation

20. Water Supply Update

21. Council Member Closing Statements

EXECUTIVE SESSION

22. Convene into executive session pursuant to Section 551.071, Texas Government Code, and Section
1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding Cause
No. 15-0088-C277, Premas Global Leander I v. City of Leander, et aL, In the 27Y Judicial District Court
of Williamson County, Texas

23. Reconvene into open session to take action as deemed appropriate in the City Council’s discretion
regarding Cause No. 15-0088-C277, Premas Global Leander I v. City of Leander, et al., In the 277th
Judicial District Court of Williamson County, Texas

24. Adjournment

CERTI FICATION

This meeting will be conducted pursuant to the Texas Government Code section ssi.ooi et seq. At any time during the meeting the council reserves
The right to adjourn into executive session on any of the above posted agenda items in accordance with the sections 551.071 Ilitigation and certain
Consultation with attorney]. 551.072 [acquisition of interest in real propertyj, 551.073 (contract for gift to city], 551.074 (certain personnel deliberations
Or 551.076 [deploymentñmplementation of security personnel or devices]. The city of Leander is committed to compliance with the American with
Disabilities Act. Reasonable modifications and equal access to communications wilt be provided upon request. Please call the City secretary at
(512) 528-2743 for information. Hearing impaired or speech disabled persons equipped with telecommunication devices for the deaf may call (512)
528,00. I certify that the above genda for this December, 2015 by 5:00 pm pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

fl})bhLD L 4th
Iidhbie Haile, TRrAC, city Secretary



 
 
 

                                                                         MINUTES 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 

201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas 

Thursday ~ December 3, 2015 at 7:00 PM  
 

  
  
 
 

 
1. Open meeting, Invocation, Pledges of Allegiance 

Mayor Fielder opened the meeting at 7:00 pm and welcomed those in attendance 
Council Member Shepherd delivered the invocation 
 

2. Roll Call 
All present 
 

3. Staff Comments: Chief Bill Gardner – Recognition of Leander Firefighter Combat Challenge Team 
                            Steve Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director – Christmas Parade & Tree Lighting 
                            Chief Greg Minton – Blue Santa 
Chief Bill Gardner recognized the members of the Leander Firefighter Combat Challenge Team 
who placed 21st of the best in the world competition. 
Steve Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director invited everyone to the Annual Christmas Parade and 
Tree Lighting.  He also introduced Phillip McNally, Program Coordinator-Athletics who will run the 
Baseball program. 
Chief Greg Minton told the council about the Blue Santa Program 

  4.  Citizen Comments:  Three (3) minutes allowed per speaker  
             Please turn in speaker request form before the meeting begins 
             No citizen comments 

 

 
 

  5.  Approval of the minutes:  November 19, 2015 
  
  6.  Second reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case 15-Z-029: amending Ordinance 05-018, the Composite 
       Zoning Ordinance for 0.9596 acres, more or less, located at 1605 and 1607 Tierra Alto from SFU/MH-2-B,  
       Single Family Urban/Manufactured Home to TF-2-B, Two-Family, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
 
  7.  Reappointment of Dr. Luis Egelsee to the Williamson County & Cities Health District 
 
  8.  Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Oak Creek Phase 2, Section 3 
 
  9.  Dedication and Acceptance of Palmera Ridge Off-Site Wastewater Improvements 
 
10.  Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Palmera Ridge Section 1 
 

    Mayor   – Christopher Fielder                  Place 4 – Ron Abruzzese 
    Place 1 – Andrea Navarrette (Mayor Pro Tem)                  Place 5 – Jeff Seiler 
    Place 2 – Michelle Stephenson                                 Place 6 – Troy Hill  
    Place 3 – Shanan Shepherd    City Manager – Kent Cagle 
                                                                              

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION 

 



 
11.  Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Palmera Ridge Section 2 
 
12.  Special Use Permit for Cancer Fundraiser in Bledsoe Park 
 
        Motion made by Council Member Seiler to approve the consent agenda.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem 
        Navarrette.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
        
 

13.  First Public Hearing on the proposed annexation of 37.079 acres, more or less, of land generally  
       located west of Ronald Reagan Blvd. and north of the South San Gabriel River in Williamson County,  
       Texas 
        Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
         
14.  First Public Hearing on the proposed annexation of multiple tracts of land totaling 229.22 acres, more  
       or less, generally  located north of Hero Way and west of Ronald Reagan Blvd.  in Williamson County,  
       Texas 
        Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
15.  First Public Hearing on the proposed annexation multiple tracts of land totaling 117.5 acres, more or  
       less, generally located along and abutting Hero Way (formerly County Road 269) in Williamson  
       County, Texas pursuant to the terms and expiration of Development Agreements under Section  
       43.035, Texas Local Government Code 
       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
  

 
 
 

16.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case 15-Z-010: Consider a zoning change for two parcels of land located at  
       1208 S. Bagdad Road for 51.84 acres, more or less, from MF-2-B, Multi-Family and GC-3-C, General  
       Commercial to PUD, Planned Unit Development with a base zoning district of MF-2-A, Multi Family, 
       Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
       Applicant: Anthony Goode on behalf of AHV-RS Trails at Leander, LLC 
        Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
        Deron Whitecotton, 1125 Cotton Patch Trail – spoke in favor of the project 
        David Whitecotton, 1117 Cotton Patch Trail – spoke in favor of the project 
 
       Action on Zoning Case 15-Z-010: amending Ordinance 05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance for  
       51.84 acres, more or less, located at 1208 S. Bagdad Road from MF-2-B, Multi-Family and GC-3-C, 
       General Commercial to PUD, Planned Unit Development with a base zoning district of MF-2-A, 
       Multi Family, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
        
       Motion made by Council Member Stephenson to approve the PUD with the following 
       conditions: 

1. The Type A Architectural Component is modified to limit the amount of stucco that qualifies as 
masonry to 35% 

2. The landscaping requirements shall be increased to 150% 
3. Architectural renderings shall be submitted with at least seven visually distinct elevations 
4. Limit the fencing adjacent to the riparian corridor to wrought iron or decorative tubular metal 
5. Provide a landscape plan per single family home for a minimum of two homes 
6. Staggered setbacks of the houses on the streetscape 
7. Include elevations to staff in the PUD for review 

       Second by Council Member Hill.  Motion passes, 6 to 1 with Council Member Abruzzese voting 
       against. 

PUBLIC HEARING: NO ACTION 

PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION 

 



 
 

 
 
 

      
     17.  Development Agreement Case #12-DA-001:  
 
             Mayor Fielder read the next two items (a & b) and will ask for one vote for both items: 
 

a. Discussion and possible action to approve the fourth amendment to the development agreement for the 
Nameless Valley Ranch (aka Travisso) between the City of Leander and Travisso, Ltd for 2,135.54 acres 
more or less, generally located to the west of Bloody Hollow abutting FM 1431 on the south and Nameless 
Road, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained      
 

b.   Discussion and possible action to approve the second amendment to the facilities agreement and adopt  
   an ordinance consenting to the addition of land to Travis County Municipal Utility District No. 21 (MUD   
   #21) between the City of Leander and Travisso, Ltd for 18.598 acres more or less, located to the northwest  
   of the intersection of RM 1431 & Travisso Pkwy, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 

              
            Motion made by Council Member Shepherd to approve both item 17a & 17b.  Second by  
            Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
  

     18.   Consider an Ordinance Establishing a Child Safety Zone; Making It Unlawful for Persons Required to  
             Register on the Texas Department of Public Safety’s Sex Offender Database Because of a Conviction  
             Against a Minor to Reside within a Specified Distance of Premises Where Children Gather 
              Greg Minton, Chief of Police explained 

        Motion made by Council Member Shepherd to approve with the measurement being property  
         line to property line.  Second by Council Member Seiler. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
 
 
 

        Mayor Fielder pulled items 19 & 20 from the agenda 
 
19.   Convene into executive session pursuant to Section 551.071, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05,  
        Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding Cause No. 15-0088- 
        C277, Premas Global Leander I v. City of Leander, et al., In the 277th Judicial District Court of Williamson 
        County, Texas         
 
20.   Reconvene into open session to take action as deemed appropriate in the City Council’s discretion regarding 
        Cause No. 15-0088-C277, Premas Global Leander I v. City of Leander, et al., In the 277th Judicial District  
        Court of Williamson County, Texas 
          
21.   Council Members Closing Statements 
        Council members gave their closing statements 
 

     22.   Adjournment  
             With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:04 pm 
 
   Attest: 
 
 
          _______________________________                  _________________________________ 
          Christopher Fielder, Mayor   Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 

REGULAR AGENDA 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 6 

 
Executive Summary 

 
December 17, 2015 

 
Subject: Consider Interlocal Purchasing Agreement with Harris County Department of 
Education 
 
Background: The City recently awarded a 48-month lease agreement for nine (9) new 
multifunction devices (copy/print/scan) to Dahill.  The annual amount of the lease is $2,213.30 
per month ($26,560.) This pricing was extended to the City via Dahill’s participation in the Harris 
County Department of Education (DOE) Interlocal Purchasing Agreement. 
 
To satisfy the Harris County DOE record keeping requirements, each government agency that 
benefits from this pricing structure must agree to the Interlocal Purchasing Agreement.   
 
Financial Consideration: None. 
  
Recommendation:  Authorize approval of an Interlocal Purchasing Agreement with Harris 
County Department of Education. 
 
Attachments: Interlocal Purchasing Agreement with Harris County Department of Education 
 
Prepared by: Joy Simonton, Purchasing Agent 
 

















AGENDA ITEM # 7 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

December 17, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Greatwood, Section 1  
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Greatwood, Section 
1 have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All documentation 
required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record drawings, 
statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed in the State 
of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files of the 
improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term Maintenance 
Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City Council 
acceptance, as anticipated, on December 17, 2015, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through December 17, 2017.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Greatwood, Section 1. 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, ADA Inspection, Maintenance 
Bond, Affidavits of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 



































AGENDA ITEM # 8 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
December 17, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Consideration of a License Agreement for the installation and 

maintenance of landscaping and irrigation within the CR 280 right-
of-way within the Greatwood Subdivision. 

 
Background: Greatwood is requesting a license agreement to construct, install, 

and landscaping and irrigation located within the CR 280 right-of-
way adjacent to the Greatwood Subdivision. 

 
Origination: Applicant: Kevin M. Flahive on behalf of JSL Development, Inc 

and HW Homeowners Association, Inc.   
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the license agreement.   
 
Attachments: 1.  License Agreement  
 2.  Location Exhibit 
 3.  Request Letter 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager   12/11/2015 



LICENSE AGREEMENT 
 
 
The City of Leander, Texas a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Texas 
situated in Williamson County, Texas (“the City” or “Licensor”), and GW Homeowners 
Association, Inc., a Texas non-profit corporation doing business as Greatwood Homeowners 
Association, Inc. (“Licensee”), enter into this License Agreement (“Agreement”) on this the ____ 
day of December, 2015, upon the terms and conditions set forth below. 
 
I. PURPOSE OF LICENSE AGREEMENT.  The City grants to Licensee permission to use 

the licensed property for the following purposes only:  
 
 Construction, installation, and maintenance of the following improvements for the 

Greatwood Phase 1, Section 1 Subdivision (the “Subdivision”) located in the right-
of-way of County Road 280, Leander, Williamson County, Texas being:  
landscaping, irrigation and related facilities; hereinafter referred to as the 
“Improvements.”  The location of the right-of-way containing the Improvements are 
more particularly shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for 
all purposes. 

 
The above-described properties, hereinafter referred to as the “licensed property,” are further shown 
in Exhibit “A” attached to this Agreement and incorporated by reference for all purposes. 
 
The City makes this grant solely to the extent of its right, title and interest in the licensed property, 
without any express or implied warranties. 
 
Licensee agrees that: (A) the construction of the Improvements permitted by this Agreement shall 
be done in compliance with all applicable City, County, State and/or Federal laws, ordinances, 
regulations and policies now existing or later adopted; (B) that all construction and installation of 
the Improvements will be completed in a timely manner without delay; (C) the Licensee will 
construct the Improvements according to plans filed with the City.  Any changes in construction 
plans must be approved by the City; and (D) any Improvements located in the City’s right-of-way 
shall be subject to City approval prior to placement and installation.  Any provision herein to the 
contrary notwithstanding, Licensee shall be liable for, and shall indemnify and hold the City 
harmless from all damages, causes of action, and claims arising out of or in connection with 
Licensee's installation, operation, maintenance or removal of the improvements permitted under this 
Agreement. 
 
II.  FEE.  No annual fee shall be due in connection with this Agreement. 
 
III.  THE CITY'S RIGHTS TO LICENSED PROPERTY.  This Agreement is expressly subject 
and subordinate to the present and future right of the City, its successors, assigns, lessees, grantees, 
and Licensees, to construct, install, establish, maintain, use, operate, and renew any public utilities 
facilities, franchised public utilities, rights-of-way, roadways, or streets on, beneath, or above the 
surface of the licensed property. 
 

{W0670603.3}  



Said uses of the licensed property by the City are permitted even though such use may substantially 
interfere with or destroy Licensee's use of the licensed property, or the Improvements.  In case of a 
declared emergency, damage to or destruction of Licensee's property shall be at no charge, cost, 
claim, or liability to the City, its agents, contractors, officers, or employees. 
 
Notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreement to the contrary, the City retains the right to enter 
upon the licensed property, at any time without notice, assuming no obligation to Licensee, to 
remove any of the licensed Improvements or alterations thereof whenever such removal is deemed 
necessary for: (a) exercising the City's rights or duties with respect to the licensed property; (b) 
protecting persons or property; or (c) the public health or safety with respect to the licensed 
property. 
 
IV.  INSURANCE.  Licensee shall, at its sole expense, provide a commercial general liability 
insurance policy, written by a company acceptable to the City and licensed to do business in Texas, 
with a combined single limit of not less than $600,000.00, which coverage may be provided in the 
form of a rider and/or endorsement to a previously existing insurance policy.  Such insurance 
coverage shall include the City as an additional-insured.  This insurance coverage shall cover all 
perils arising from the activities of Licensee, its officers, employees, agents, or contractors, relative 
to this Agreement, or otherwise within the public right-of-way and property within the licensed 
property.  Licensee shall be responsible for any deductibles stated in the policy.  A certificate of 
insurance evidencing such coverage shall be delivered to the City Secretary of the City within thirty 
(30) days of the effective date of this Agreement. 
 
Licensee shall not cause any insurance to be canceled nor permit any insurance to lapse.  All 
insurance certificates shall include a clause to the effect that the policy shall not be canceled, 
reduced, restricted or otherwise limited until forty-five (45) days after the City has received written 
notice as evidenced by a return receipt of registered or certified mail. 
 
V.  INDEMNIFICATION.  Licensee shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City and its 
officers, agents and employees against all claims, suits, demands, judgments, expenses, including 
attorney's fees, or other liability for personal injury, death, or damage to any person or property 
which arises from or is in any manner caused by the Licensee's construction or maintenance of the 
Improvements or use of the licensed property.  This indemnification provision, however shall not 
apply to any claims, suits, damage, costs, losses, or expenses arising solely from the negligent or 
willful acts of the City; provided that for the purposes of the foregoing, the City's act of entering into 
this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a “negligent or willful act.” 
 
VI.  CONDITIONS. 
 
A. Licensee's Responsibilities.  Licensee will be responsible for any damage to or repair of the 
Improvements.  Further, Licensee shall reimburse the City for all costs of replacing or repairing any 
property of the City or of others which was damaged or destroyed as a result of activities under this 
Agreement by, or on behalf of, Licensee. 
 
B. Maintenance.  Licensee shall maintain the licensed property and the Improvements in good 
condition and making any necessary repairs to the Improvements at its expense.   

{W0670603.3}  



 
C. Modification of Improvements. Licensee agrees that modification of the Improvements shall 
be at Licensee's expense.  Licensee shall obtain the proper permits prior to any modification of the 
Improvements.  Any such modification shall be at Licensee's sole discretion, except where 
otherwise provided by this Agreement.  This Agreement, until its expiration or revocation, shall run 
as a covenant with the land, and the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding on the 
grantees, successors and assigns of Licensee.  Licensee shall cause any immediate successors-in-
interest to have actual notice of this Agreement. 
 
D. Default.  In the event that Licensee fails to maintain the licensed property or otherwise 
comply with the terms or conditions as set forth herein, then the City shall give Licensee written 
notice thereof, by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the address set forth 
below.  Licensee shall have thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice to take action to 
remedy the failure complained of, and, if Licensee does not satisfactorily remedy the same within 
the thirty (30) day period, the City may terminate this Agreement. 
 
Licensee Address      Licensor Address 
 
GW Homeowners Association, Inc.    City of Leander 
Attention:  John S. Lloyd, President    Attention:  City Manager 
4720-4 Rockcliff Road      P.O. Box 319 
Austin, Texas  78746      Leander, Texas 78641 
        
VII. COMMENCEMENT AND TERMINATION.  This Agreement shall begin with the 
effective date and continue thereafter for so long as Licensee is constructing or maintaining the 
Improvements as set forth herein.  If Licensee abandons construction or maintenance of all or any 
part of the Improvements or licensed property as set forth in this Agreement, then this Agreement, 
shall expire and terminate following thirty (30) days written notice to the Licensee if such 
abandonment has not been remedied by the Licensee within such period.  The City shall thereafter 
have the same complete title to the licensed property so abandoned as though this Agreement had 
never been made and shall have the right to enter the licensed property and terminate the rights of 
Licensee, its successors and assigns hereunder.  All installations of Licensee not removed shall be 
deemed property of the City as of the time abandoned.  
 
VIII.   TERMINATION. 
 
A. Termination by Licensee.  This Agreement may be terminated by Licensee by delivering 
written notice of termination to the City not later than thirty (30) days before the effective date of 
termination.  If Licensee so terminates, then it shall remove all installations, other than the 
Improvements, that it made from the licensed property within the thirty day notice period at its sole 
cost and expense.  Failure to do so shall constitute a breach of this Agreement. 
 
B. Termination by City.  Subject to prior written notification to Licensee or its successor-in-
interest, this Agreement is revocable by the City if: 
 
 1. The licensed Improvements, or a portion of them, interfere with the City's right-of-

{W0670603.3}  



way; 
 
 2. Use of the right-of-way area becomes necessary for a public purpose; 
 
 3. The licensed Improvements, or a portion of them, constitute a danger to the public 

which the City deems not to be remediable by alteration or maintenance of such 
Improvements; 

 
 4. Despite thirty (30) days written notice to Licensee, maintenance or alteration 

necessary to alleviate a danger to the public has not been made; or 
 
 5. Licensee fails to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement including, 

but not limited to any insurance or license fee requirements specified herein. 
 
IX. EMINENT DOMAIN.  If eminent domain is exerted on the licensed property by 
paramount authority, then the City will, to the extent permitted by law, cooperate with Licensee to 
effect the removal of Licensee's affected installations and Improvements thereon, at Licensee's sole 
expense.  Licensee shall be entitled to retain all monies paid by the condemning authority to 
Licensee for Licensee's installations taken, if any. 
 
X. INTERPRETATION.  Although drawn by the City, this Agreement shall, in the event of 
any dispute over its meaning or application, be interpreted fairly and reasonably, and neither more 
strongly for or against either party. 
 
XI. APPLICATION OF LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Texas.  If the final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction invalidates any part of this 
Agreement, then the remaining parts shall be enforced, to the extent possible, consistent with the 
intent of the parties as evidenced by this Agreement. 
 
XII. VENUE.  Venue for all lawsuits concerning this Agreement will be in Williamson County, 
Texas. 
 
XIII.  COVENANT RUNNING WITH LAND; WAIVER OF DEFAULT.  This Agreement 
and all of the covenants herein shall run with the land; therefore, the conditions set forth herein shall 
inure to and bind each party's successors and assigns.  Either party may waive any default of the 
other at any time, without affecting or impairing any right arising from any subsequent or other 
default. 
 
XIV. ASSIGNMENT; HOMEOWNER’S ASSOCIATION.  (a)  Licensee shall not assign, 
sublet or transfer its interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the City, which 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
(b)  The City Manager may approve an assignment, sublease, or transfer of interest in this 
Agreement to a home owner’s association for the Subdivision (the “HOA”) that meets the 
requirements of this paragraph. The HOA must have been legally established; maintenance 
obligations for the Improvements must have been assigned to the HOA; and the HOA must have a 

{W0670603.3}  



binding, continuing responsibility for the maintenance and operation of the Improvements and 
shall establish adequate funding for such maintenance and operation. The HOA’s maintenance 
obligation shall be noted on the plat for the Subdivision and in the restrictive covenants filed of 
record for the Subdivision in a form that is acceptable to the City. The restrictive covenants shall 
provide for a monthly or annual assessment sufficient to fund the maintenance and operation of 
the Improvements, shall give the City the authority to judicially enforce the covenants requiring 
adequate assessments to be made and collected and the streets to be maintained and repaired; and 
shall provide for the City to recover any attorney’s fees and expenses incurred in judicial 
enforcement; provided that nothing herein shall obligate the City to maintain and repair the 
Improvements.  This Agreement may not be assigned, sublet, or transferred until the Licensee or 
the HOA submits proof to the City of compliance with this paragraph and the insurance 
requirements under this Agreement.  Subject to compliance with this paragraph and the insurance 
requirements set forth herein, if any, Licensee shall furnish to the City a copy of any such 
assignment or transfer of any of Licensee's rights in this Agreement, including the name, address, 
and contact person of the assignee, along with the date of assignment or transfer. 
 
ACCEPTED, this the ____ day of December, 2015. 
 
    
  LICENSOR:   CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
  
 By:   
 Name: Kent Cagle  
 Title:   City Manager 
    
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
COUNTY OF ___________ § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the _____ day of December, 2015, by Kent 
Cagle, City Manager for the City of Leander, Texas, on behalf of the City. 
 
  
   
 Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
  

{W0670603.3}  



 
  LICENSEE:   GW HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., 
     a Texas non-profit corporation, 
     doing business as Greatwood Homeowners Association, Inc. 
        
   
 By:   
 Name: John S. Lloyd 
 Title: President 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS  § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the ____ day of December, 2015, by John S. 
Lloyd, President of GW Homeowners Association, Inc., a Texas non-profit corporation, doing 
business as Greatwood Homeowners Association, Inc., on behalf of said entity. 
       
 
   
 Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
 
  

{W0670603.3}  



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Hatched Areas Contain “Improvements” 
 

 
 
  

{W0670603.3}  



 

{W0670603.3}  



! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

2B

2B

CR 279

CR 280

LIVE OAK RD

OAK CREEK RD
GLORY LN

TERRY LN

GR
EA

TW
OO

D 
TR

L

SHORT RD

MOCKINGBIRD HILL

BYRON CIR

COUNCIL SPRINGS PASS

COLLABORATIVE WAY

FARVIEW CIR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±0 1,000

Feet

License Agreement - Attachment #2 Location Exhibit - Greatwood Subdivision
ZONING

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 

SFL
SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 

LC
GC
HC
HI
PUD

PUD Land Use

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !
PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for
informational purposes only.  No warranty is made by the City
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official
ordinance for zoning verification.  This data should not be 
constructed as a legal description or survey instrument. No
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the
information herein provided.



ARMBRUST & BROWN, PLLC 

A T T O R N E Y S  A N D  C O U N S E L O R S  

100 CONGRESS AVENUE, SUITE 1300 
AUSTIN, TEXAS  78701-2744 

(512) 435-2300 

TELECOPIER (512) 435-2360 

{W0671434.1} 

KEVIN M. FLAHIVE 
(512) 435-2333 
KFLAHIVE@ABAUSTIN.COM 

November 17, 2015 

VIA EMAIL ONLY 
 
Robin M. Griffin, AICP, Senior Planner 
City of Leander 
200 West Willis Street 
Leander, Texas  78641 
 

Re: License Agreement for Greatwood Phase 1, Section 1 
 
Dear Ms. Griffin: 

I am writing to you on behalf of JL Development, Inc., the owner/developer of the Greatwood 
Subdivision, and HW Homeowners Association, Inc., the homeowners association for the Greatwood 
Subdivision, to request the City of Leander’s grant of a license to HW Homeowners Association, Inc. for 
the construction, installation, maintenance and repair of improvements within the County Road 280 right-
of-way.  The improvements to be located within this right-of-way are those approved by the City of 
Leander on December 11, 2014, as shown the Construction Plans for Water, Street & Drainage for 
Greatwood Subdivision Phase 1, Section 1.   

Enclosed with this letter, please find:  (i) a draft of the proposed License Agreement, Exhibit “A” 
to which illustrates the locations within the County Road 280 right-of-way within which the 
improvements are to be located; (ii) a redline showing the differences between the proposed License 
Agreement and the City of Leander’s template; (iii) a completed copy of the License Agreement 
Application & Checklist; (iv) the homeowners association’s certificate of liability insurance naming the 
City of Leander as an additional insured; and (iv) a check in the amount of $250.00 for filing fees. 

If you have any questions or comments or need further information, please contact me. 

Sincerely, 

ARMBRUST & BROWN, PLLC 

 
 

By:      
               Kevin M. Flahive 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 9 

 
Executive Summary 

December 17, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:  Second public hearing on the proposed annexation of 37.079 acres, more or 
less, of land generally located west of Ronald Reagan Blvd.  and north of the South San Gabriel 
River in Williamson County, Texas. 
  
Background:  The City Council approved the resolution accepting the petition for voluntary 
annexation for the subject tracts at its October 15, 2015 meeting.  The property includes 
approximately 37.079 acres on the west side of Ronald Reagan Blvd just north of the South San 
Gabriel River.  The resolution set the two public hearings for December 3, 2015 and December 
17, 2015.  The first reading of the ordinance is scheduled for January 7, 2016 and the second and 
final reading is scheduled for January 21, 2016.  
 
This is a voluntary annexation. 
     
Origination:  Applicants 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends conducting the second public hearing. 
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation schedule 
2. Location maps 
3. Annexation resolution and service plan 
4. Annexation petition 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 
 
 11/18/2015 

 



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
TOUNGATE / PALMERA BLUFF +/- 220.30 Acres, VALLEY VISTA AND CR 269 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
October 15, 2015 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings December 3, 2015 and December 17 2015; 
Council directs development of service plan for area to be 
annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By November 2, 2015 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
November 18, 2015** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
December 2, 2015** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public Hearing  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

December 3, 2015* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

December 17, 2015* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
January 7, 2016* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

January 21, 2016; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the 1st 
First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday. 
 



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

PALMERA RIDGE

RANCHO SIENNA

2B

2B

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

BRADLEY RANCH RD

VIA DE SIENNA BLVD

CR 274

SAN MATTEO ST

GROSSETO LN

SANTA MARIA ST

SA
N 

MI
NI

AT
O 

ST

CORTONA LN

ADORNO LN

CORTONA CV

RA
NC

HO
 TR

L

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200

Feet

ANNEXATION 15-A-004
Valley Vista Annexation

CITY MAPË

Subject Property



RESOLUTION NO.  15-019-00     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE 
PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF 37.079 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, OF 
LAND LOCATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS; SETTING AN 
ANNEXATION SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of certain properties located within Williamson County, Texas, has 
petitioned the City of Leander, Texas, (herein the “City”), a home-rule City, for annexation of said 
properties, more particularly described herein (the “subject property”),  into the City limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the City 
and the owners have made application for annexation;  
 
 WHEREAS, after review and consideration of such petition for annexation, the City Council 
finds that the subject property is exempt from the City’s annexation plan pursuant to § 43.052 (h)(2) of 
the Local Government Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the petitioner has agreed and consented to the annexation of the subject property 
by the City and further agreed to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in 
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.     
 
  Section 2.  Proceedings.  The petition for annexation of the subject property, including the 
abutting streets, roadways, and rights of way, not previously annexed into the City and the draft services 
plan shown in Exhibit “B”, are hereby accepted:   
 
 All those certain tracts or parcels of land being 37.079 acres, more or less, situated in 

the Henry Garmes Survey, Abstract No. 269, located in Williamson County, Texas, to 
include tracts of land identified by Williamson County Appraisal District Property ID’s: 
R497583 and R473803 and being more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit 
“A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
Two public hearings are set for the dates of December 3, 2015 and December 17, 2015.  Notice 
of such hearings shall be posted and the hearings shall be open to the public to accept public 
comment on the annexation request.  In the event of a conflict between the subject property 
descriptions contained herein, Exhibit “A” shall control.  

  

 

 



 
Section 3. Severability. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held 

unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect and 
to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable. 

 
Section 4.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 15th day of October, 2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

  

  

  

 

 



Exhibit “A”  
 

SUBJECT PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
 

  

 

 



 

Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within 
the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on the 
effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 

  

 

 



 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall be 
temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request of the 
landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider 
rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by the 
landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will 
be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions thereof, 
by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose 
jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance 
with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the 
extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the subject 
properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject properties 

  

 

 



and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City utility department on 
the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and 
customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time.  The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with 
its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and 
extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated 
customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is 
submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a water well 
that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with applicable 
rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject 
properties’ owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) (a) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable 
portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions 
thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the 
subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the 
ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of 
wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ 
owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject 
properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly 
situated areas and customers of the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies 
of the City in effect from time to time.  The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained 
by the City in accordance with its usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions 
will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other 
similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for 
service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a 
septic system that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with 
all applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the 
subject property owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
  (b) This paragraph shall apply, in addition to paragraph 2B(ii)(a), in the event the 

City contracts with City of Liberty Hill, Texas to provide wholesale wastewater service to an 
area that includes the subject property (the “Wholesale Wastewater Agreement”). The 
landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, 
assigns and subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree to pay three hundred fifty 

  

 

 



dollars ($350.00) per living unit equivalent (the “System Reservation Fee”), as that term is 
defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, for the purpose of reserving capacity in the 
South San Gabriel Plant, as that term is defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, at the 
time that the landowner submits a preliminary plat for the subject property, or any portion 
thereof, and acknowledges and agrees that payment of the System Reservation Fee shall be a 
condition of preliminary plat approval.  Further, the landowners, on behalf of themselves and 
the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, assigns, and subsequent purchasers of the 
subject property, agree that each lot, tract, parcel or building site within the subject property that 
will be provided with wastewater service by the City shall pay the Connection Fee set forth in 
the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement.  The Connection Fee shall be payable with respect to a 
lot, tract, parcel, or building site at the time the building permit for each building or structure is 
applied for, or if no building permit is required, then upon the date application is made to the 
City for connection to the City’s wastewater system.  The System Reservation Fee and the 
Connection Fee shall be in addition to any other fee, rates, and charges charged by the City for 
wastewater service to similarly situated customers.  When evaluating the application of City 
policies, rules, and ordinances to similarly situated areas and customers of the City, land and 
customers located within the area served by the City pursuant to the Wholesale Wastewater 
Agreement are similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject to individual 
development agreements that may be applicable to such land. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property 
and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The 
maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic 
control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public 
streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need 
therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 

  

 

 



  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings 
and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate 
study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The property 
owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property or 
redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a developer in 
a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or redevelopment.  
No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject property the same 
as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is 
attached.  
 
 

  

 

 

















AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 
Executive Summary 

December 17, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:  Second public hearing on the proposed annexation of multiple tracts of land 
totaling 229.22 acres, more or less, generally located north of Hero Way and west of Ronald 
Reagan Blvd. in Williamson County, Texas. 
  
Background:  The City Council approved the resolution accepting the petition for voluntary 
annexation for the subject tracts at its October 15, 2015 meeting.  The property includes 
approximately 229.22 acres on the west side Ronald Reagan Blvd north of Hero Way and is the 
additional land that was approved by the City Council on March 5, 2015 to be included in the 
Palmera Ridge MUD plus two additional tracts.   The resolution set the two public hearings for 
December 3, 2015 and December 17, 2015.  The first reading of the ordinance is scheduled for 
January 7, 2016 and the second and final reading is scheduled for January 21, 2016.  
 
This is a voluntary annexation. 
     
Origination:  Applicants 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends conducting the second public hearing. 
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation schedule 
2. Location maps 
3. Annexation resolution and service plan 
4. Annexation petition 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 
 
 11/18/2015 

 



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
TOUNGATE / PALMERA BLUFF +/- 220.30 Acres, VALLEY VISTA AND CR 269 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
October 15, 2015 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings December 3, 2015 and December 17 2015; 
Council directs development of service plan for area to be 
annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By November 2, 2015 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
November 18, 2015** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
December 2, 2015** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public Hearing  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

December 3, 2015* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

December 17, 2015* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
January 7, 2016* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

January 21, 2016; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the 1st 
First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday. 
 



! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

PALMERA RIDGE

5D

4C
2B

4C

3B

2B

2B

2B2B2B 2B2B
2B2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B 2B 2B2B 2B2B2B

2B

2B

2B

CR
 27

0

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

BAKER LN

CR 26
7

CR 264

ORCHARD DR

CHRISTOPHER LN

BELEN DR

CR 274MI
KE

S 
W

AY

AIRPORT DR

KING LN

VIA DE SIENNA BLVD

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

CARRETERA DR

CR
 26

6

JENNIFER LN

PVR 918

LEN BAR LN

BRADLEY RANCH RD

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HAWKINS DR
NORWOOD DR

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

Palmera Bluff/Toungate Annexation

Attachment #4
Location Exhibit
Palmera Bluff/Toungate

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits



  

RESOLUTION NO.  15-018-00     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ACCEPTING 
THE PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF A 229.22 ACRES, MORE OR 
LESS, TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, 
TEXAS; SETTING AN ANNEXATION SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR 
OPEN MEETINGS AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the owners of certain property located within Williamson County, Texas, has 
petitioned the City of Leander, Texas, (herein the “City”), a home-rule City, for annexation of said 
property, more particularly described herein (the “subject property”),  into the City limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the 
City and the owners have made application for annexation;  
 
 WHEREAS, after review and consideration of such petition for annexation, the City 
Council finds that the property is exempt from the City’s annexation plan pursuant to § 43.052 
(h)(2) of the Local Government Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the petitioner has agreed and consented to the annexation of the subject 
property by the City and further agreed to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action 
now in force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter 
adopted, as modified by that certain Addendum No. 1 to the Development and Annexation 
Agreement (Toungate Tract – Palmera Bluff) between the City and Hanna/Magee L.P. #1, recorded 
under Document No. 2015022090, Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas (the 
“Addendum”), which Addendum supplements the Development and Annexation Agreement 
between the City, Palmera Ridge Development, Inc. and Palmera Ridge Municipal Utility District;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and 
are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of 
fact.     
 
  Section 2.  Proceedings.  The petition for annexation of the following property, including 
the abutting streets, roadways, and rights of way, not previously annexed into the City and the draft 
services plan shown in Exhibit “C”, submitted by Petitioner, are hereby accepted:   
 
 All that certain tract or parcel of land being 220.30 acres, more or less, located in 

Williamson County, Texas, being the “Additional Land” described in the Addendum 
and being more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto 
and incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
 All that certain tract or parcel of land being 8.92 acres, more or less, , located in 
 

 



  

Williamson County, Texas, being the “Additional Land” described in the Addendum 
and being more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “B” attached hereto 
and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

 
Two public hearings are set for the dates of December 3, 2015 and December 17, 2015.  Notice of 
such hearings shall be posted and the hearings shall be open to the public to accept public comment 
on the annexation request. 
 

Section 3. Severability. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held 
unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of 
such section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions 
thereof; but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force 
and effect and to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable. 

 
Section 4.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting 

at which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 15th day of October, 2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

  

  
  

 

 

















































AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 
Executive Summary 

December 17, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:  Second public hearing on the proposed annexation of multiple tracts of land 
totaling 117.5 acres, more or less, generally located along and abutting Hero Way (Formerly 
County Road 269) in Williamson County, Texas pursuant to the terms and expiration of 
Development Agreements under Section 43.035, Texas Local Government Code. 
  
Background:  The City Council approved the resolution accepting the petition for voluntary 
annexation for the subject tracts at its October 15, 2015 meeting.  The properties include all those 
tracts subject to development agreements under Section 43.035 that were entered into between 
the City and property owners along CR 269 (now Hero Way) in 2010. The agreements provided 
for the voluntary annexation of the properties to be initiated after the expiration of the term of the 
agreements which was 5 years.  The resolution set the two public hearings for December 3, 2015 
and December 17, 2015.  The first reading of the ordinance is scheduled for January 7, 2016 and 
the second and final reading is scheduled for January 21, 2016.  
 
This is a voluntary annexation pursuant to the annexation agreements. 
     
Origination:  Applicants 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends conducting the second public hearing. 
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation schedule 
2. Location maps 
3. Annexation resolution and service plan 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 
 
 11/18/2015 

 



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
TOUNGATE / PALMERA BLUFF +/- 220.30 Acres, VALLEY VISTA AND CR 269 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
October 15, 2015 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings December 3, 2015 and December 17 2015; 
Council directs development of service plan for area to be 
annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By November 2, 2015 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
November 18, 2015** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
December 2, 2015** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public Hearing  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

December 3, 2015* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

December 17, 2015* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
January 7, 2016* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

January 21, 2016; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the 1st 
First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday. 
 



! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

PALMERA RIDGE

MARBELLA

STEWARTCROSSING

RIDGMAR LANDING

CR
 27

0

HERO WAY

RM 2243
RO

NA
LD

 W
 R

EA
GA

N 
BL

VD

CR
 26

9

183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD SB

BAKER LN

183A TOLL RD FR NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

PVR 918

BELEN DR

CR 274MI
KE

S 
W

AY

AIRPORT DR CR 264

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

JENNIFER LN

WINDING OAK TRL

HAWKINS DR
NORWOOD DR

SA
NTA

 CAT
ALIN

A W
AY

RM 2243

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

CR 269 Annexation

Attachment #3
Location Exhibit

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

City Limits
Subject Property
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction



RESOLUTION NO.  15-020-00    
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, INITIATING THE 
VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION OF TRACTS OF LAND LOCATED ALONG 
AND ABUTTING HERO WAY (FORMERLY COUNTY ROAD 269) IN 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS PURSUANT TO THE TERMS AND 
EXPIRATION OF DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS UNDER SECTION 
43.035, TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE; SETTING AN 
ANNEXATION SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the owners of certain properties located within Williamson County, Texas, have 
petitioned the City of Leander, Texas, (herein the “City”), a home-rule City, for annexation of said 
properties, more particularly described herein (the “subject properties”), into the City limits pursuant to 
the terms of sixteen separate Development Agreements Under Section 43.035, Texas Local 
Government Code (the “Development Agreements”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject properties are contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the 
City and the owners have made application for voluntary annexation of the subject properties pursuant 
to Section 3(a)(5) and 3(b) of the Development Agreements which authorizes the annexation of the 
subject properties at the City Council’s discretion upon the expiration of the Development Agreements;  
 
 WHEREAS, the five year term of the Development Agreements expires on or about October 
21, 2015;  
 
 WHEREAS, after review and consideration of such petitions for annexation, the City Council 
finds that the subject properties are exempt from the City’s annexation plan pursuant to § 43.052 (h)(2) 
of the Local Government Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the petitioners have agreed and consented to the annexation of the subject 
properties by the City and further agreed to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action 
now in force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter 
adopted;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.     
 
  Section 2.  Proceedings.  The petitions for annexation of the following properties, including 
the abutting streets, roadways, and rights of way, not previously annexed into the City and the draft 
services plan shown in Exhibit “B”, submitted by Petitioners and owners of the subject properties, are 

  

 

 



hereby accepted:   
 
 All those certain tracts or parcels of land located along and abutting County Road 269 

in Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly shown and described in the 
Development Agreements filed and recorded in the Official Public Records of 
Williamson County, Texas as Document Numbers: 2010083081, 2010083082, 
2010083083, 2010083084, 2010083085, 2010083086, 2010083087, 2010083088, 
2010083089, 2010083090, 2010083091, 2010083092, 2010083093, 2010083094, 
2010083095, 2010083096 and being shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
Two public hearings are set for the dates of December 3, 2015 and December 17, 2015.  Notice of such 
hearings shall be posted and the hearings shall be open to the public to accept public comment on the 
annexation request. 
 

Section 3. Severability. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held 
unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect and 
to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable. 

 
Section 4.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 15th day of October, 2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

  

  

  

 

 



Exhibit “A”  
 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
 

  

 

 



Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within 
the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on the 
effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 

  

 

 



 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall be 
temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request of the 
landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider 
rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by the 
landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will 
be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions thereof, 
by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose 
jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance 
with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the 
extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the subject 
properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject properties 
and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City utility department on 
the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and 

  

 

 



customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time.  The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with 
its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and 
extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated 
customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is 
submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a water well 
that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with applicable 
rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject 
properties’ owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of wastewater 

service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions thereof 
as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the ordinances, 
regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of wastewater 
service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ owner shall 
construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and construction of 
facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as required in City 
ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-
site improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City utility department on the 
same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and 
customers of the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time.  The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in 
accordance with its usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be 
installed and extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly 
situated customers of the City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is 
submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a septic system 
that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable 
rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property 
owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property 
and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The 
maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 

  

 

 



  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 
necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 

 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic 
control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public 
streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need 
therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings 

and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate 
study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The property 
owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property or 
redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a developer in 
a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or redevelopment.  
No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject property the same 
as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is 
attached.  

 
 

 

  

 

 



































AGENDA ITEM # 12 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
December 17, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-Z-020: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of a parcel of land generally located to the 
southeast of the intersection of San Gabriel Parkway and Bagdad 
Road/CR 279; 1.508 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel R476367.  
Currently, the property is zoned LC-2-B (Local Commercial). The 
applicant is proposing to zone the property to LC-3-A, Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Danny Martin on behalf of JSL Commercial 

Investments, LLC. 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. Commissioner Schwendenmann moved to 

deny the request and the motion was not seconded.  Vice Chari 
moved to approve the zoning request of LC-3-A (Local 
Commercial) and the potion passed with a 4 to 2 vote 
(Commissioners Schwendenmann and Hines opposing) at the 
December 10, 2015 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Location Exhibit 
 4.   Proposed Zoning Map 
 5. Aerial Map  
 6. Notification Map 
 7.   Letter of Intent 
 8.  Ordinance 
 9. Minutes-Planning & Zoning Commission December 10, 2015 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 12/11/2015 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-020 

BENBROOK RANCH COMMERCIAL 
 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: JSL Commercial Investments, LLC. 
 
Current Zoning: LC-2-B (Local Commercial) 
    
Proposed Zoning: LC-3-A (Local Commercial) 
  
Size and Location: The property is located on the southeast of the intersection of San Gabriel 

Parkway and Bagdad Road/CR 279 and is approximately 1.508 acres in 
size. 

 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
 

ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH LC-2-B Undeveloped land zoned for local commercial uses 

EAST LC-2-B 
SFU-2-B 

Undeveloped land zoned for local office 
Established Single-Family Homes (Benbrook Ranch) 

SOUTH LC-2-B Undeveloped land zoned for local commercial uses 

WEST GC-3-B Undeveloped land zoned for general commercial uses 
        

 
  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
USE COMPONENTS:   

LC – LOCAL COMMERCIAL:   
Features: Any use in LO plus retail sales and services, restaurants, banks, nursery or greenhouse, 

grocery sales, pharmacies, fitness centers, dance and music academies, artist studio, colleges 
and universities, bed and breakfast.  Hours of operation: 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 Sun.-Thurs., 5:00 
a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 

Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact commercial, retail, personal services and 
office uses located in close proximity to their primary customers, which cater to the everyday 
needs of the nearby residents, and which may be located near residential neighborhoods.  
Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification street. 

 
SITE COMPONENT:   

TYPE 3:   
Features:  Accessory buildings up to 30% of primary building; accessory dwellings; drive-thru 

service; limited outdoor display and storage; outdoor fueling and washing of vehicles; 
overhead service doors, no indoor parking required. 

Intent:   
(1) A Type 3 site component is intended to be utilized with LO and LC use components where 

adjacent to less restricted districts to provide for a land use transition. 
(2) This component is intended to be utilized with residential components where accessory dwellings 

or additional accessory structures are appropriate and are not provided for in the Type 1 or 2 site 
components. 

(3) This component is intended to be combined with LO, LC, GC, HC and HI components where it is 
appropriate to utilize the outdoor site area for outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and 
storage or accessory buildings. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENT:   

TYPE A:   
Features:  85% masonry; 5 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type A architectural component is intended to be utilized for high quality developments or to 

provide variety as an additional option for portions of a residential development and may be 
utilized in or adjacent to single-family uses.   

(2) This component is intended to be utilized for single-family development that backs up to, or sides 
to, a major thoroughfare. 

(3) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 
for harmonious land use transitions by applying this component to a less restrictive use or site 
component adjacent to a more restrictive use or site component.  This standard may be utilized to 
help ensure compatibility for non-residential uses, multi-family, two-family, townhouse or small 
lot residential development with adjacent property that is more restricted.   

(4) This component is intended to be utilized for buildings requiring heights greater than those 
provided in other architectural components.   

(5) This component may be utilized for any high profile development, for any property in a prominent 
location or at an important gateway to the community. 

(6) This component is not intended to become an involuntary standard for the majority of a single-
family subdivision, especially with SFR, SFE, SFS, SFU and SFC components.    

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide a balanced mix of complementary uses that support a strong and diverse tax base. 
 Focus commercial growth in Activity, Community and Neighborhood Centers. 
 Community Centers provide the same uses and services offered by a Neighborhood 

Center.  Additionally, Community Centers include uses that are demanded less frequently 
than daily, and are typically anchored by grocery stores. Community Centers should have 
an internal network of streets and promote walkability within the Center.   
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting the LC-3-A (Local Commercial) district in order to allow for a 
convenience store with fuel sales.  The properties located to the north, west, and south are zoned 
for general commercial and local commercial uses.  The property to the east is currently 
developed as part of the Benbrook Ranch subdivision.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 
originally heard a similar zoning request for this property on August 27, 2015.  The applicant 
was requesting the LC-3-B (Local Commercial) district and the Commission recommended 
denial of the request.  
 
The LC use component permits all uses allowed in the LO (Local Office) use component as well 
as retail sales and services, restaurants, banks, and convenience stores.  The hours of operation: 
are limited to 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. Sunday through Thursday and 5:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. 
Friday and Saturday.  The intent of the use component is to allow for uses that are limited in 
scale and offer services to neighboring residential neighborhoods.  Access should be provided by 
a collector or higher classification street.  In this case, access is provided by San Gabriel Pkwy 
and Bagdad Road. 
 
The current Type 2 site component does not permit outdoor storage or display, outdoor 
entertainment, or outdoor fueling.  The change to a Type 3 site component will permit outdoor 
fuel sales.  The table below demonstrates the differences between the two site components. 
 
 

Site Standards Type 2 Type 3 

Outdoor Display and Storage Not Permitted 30% of gross floor area 
of primary structure 

Use of Overhead Commercial 
Service Doors Not Permitted Permitted 

Outdoor Fueling Not Permitted Permitted 

Outdoor Container Storage Not Permitted 20% of gross floor area 
of primary structure 

 
The Type A architectural component requires at least eight-five (85%) of the exterior surface 
area walls are masonry and that there are a minimum of five design features.  This component is 
intended to provide high building standards and ensure compatibility between non-residential 
and residential uses. 

3 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 
This property is located within a Community Center as identified by the Future Land Use Map.  
This center includes uses that serve neighborhoods as well as uses that are demanded less 
frequently than daily.  Typically, the center is anchored by a midsized user like a grocery stores.  
An internal network of streets and pedestrian connections should be included within Community 
Centers in order to promote walkability within the Center. 
 
These centers serve a larger population and typically have service areas up to one mile and 
include up to 125,000 square feet of commercial space. Typical uses include community-serving 
commercial uses (grocery stores, restaurants and services), small professional offices, small-lot 
single-family, townhomes, duplexes, quadplexes, parks and public spaces.  The target land use 
mix for Community Center is fifty (50%) percent residential and fifty (50%) non-residential. 
 
The existing land use mix does not meet the target mix shown in the Comprehensive Plan.  
Currently, the predominant land use is community commercial/retail.  The proposed zoning 
change does not change the existing land use mix since only the site component is proposed to 
change.   
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested LC-3-A district.  The intent of the Type A 
architectural component is to provide for high quality developments and to be used for projects 
that are adjacent to established single-family neighborhoods or more restrictive areas.  The Type 
3 site component is intended to be utilized with LO and LC use components where adjacent to 
less restricted districts to provide for a land use transition.  In this situation, the properties across 
Bagdad are less restricted districts. 
 
The requested zoning district meets the intent statements of the Composite Zoning Ordinance 
and the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 

4 
 



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 23B

3B
CR 279

LOGAN DR

DUNHILL DR
W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

GENTRY DR

MCCALLUM DR

WASHBURN DR

FLANAGAN DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-020  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - Benbrook Ranch Comm

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



SAVANNA RANCH,SEC 1

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 2

BENBROOK
RANCH
PARK

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 1

TOM GLENN
HS

SAVANNA RANCH,SEC 2

SAVANNA RANCH,SEC 3

CR 279

HA
LS

EY
 DR

COLLABORATIVE WAY

AIKEN DR

GENTRY DR

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

WASHBURN DR

FLANAGAN DR

ARVADA DR

LOGAN DR

DUNHILL DR

HARTMAN DR

MATHESON DR

HE
NS

LE
Y D

R

TABERNASH DR

KERSEY DR

CH
IM

NE
Y 

DR
PI

TK
IN

 D
R

LA
NC

AS
TE

R 
DR

MCCALLUM DR

OL
NE

Y 
DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-020  Attachment #3 Future Land Use Map - Benbrook Ranch Comm

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Open Space
Mixed Use Corridor

Commercial Corridor
Neighborhood Center 
Community Center
Activity Center

Transit Supportive Mixed Use
Station Area Mixed Use
Old Town Mixed Use
Employment Mixed Use
Industrial District
Neighborhood Residential

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 23B

3B
CR 279

LOGAN DR

DUNHILL DR
W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

GENTRY DR

MCCALLUM DR

WASHBURN DR

FLANAGAN DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-020  Attachment #4 Proposed Zoning Map - Benbrook Ranch Comm

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Proposed
LC-3-A



CR 279

LOGAN DR

DUNHILL DR

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

MCCALLUM DR

WASHBURN DR

GENTRY DR

FLANAGAN DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-020 Attachment #5
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Benbrook Ranch Commercial

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 2

R501146

R476
367

R031689

R501145

R472771

R502970

R031633R031632

R381978

R031631

R476404

R031630

R476405

R476403

R476400

R476399

R476402

R511667

R476401

R476412

R476455

R476411

R476410

R476407

R476409
R4

76
39

8

R476408 R476717

R4
76

39
6

R476503

R4
76

39
7

R476714

R476523

R476697

R476715

R476716

R476713

R476505

R476406

R476506 R4
76

50
7R476504

R476700

R491364

R476699

R4
76

50
8

R476712

R476698

R476703

R476454

R476702

R476701

R476522

R476521 R4
76

51
9

R4
76

51
7

R4
76

51
8

R4
76

52
0

R4
76

39
5

R4
76

70
4

R4
76

50
9

R4
76

71
1

R476459 R476461
R476460

R476457

CR 279

LOGAN DR

DUNHILL DR

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

MCCALLUM DR

GENTRY DR

WASHBURN DR

FLANAGAN DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-020  

Attachment #6
Notification Map
Benbrook Commercial

CITY MAPË

Public Notification Boundary
Subject Property

City Limits
WCAD Parcels

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 7





Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

 
ORDINANCE NO #  

 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
LC-2-B (LOCAL COMMERCIAL) TO LC-3-A (LOCAL COMMERCIAL); 
MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED 
MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcel of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain parcels of land being 1.508 acres, more or less, located in 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A”, generally 
located to the southeast of the intersection of San Gabriel Pkwy and Bagdad Rd/CR 279, 
Williamson County, Texas; identified by Williamson County tax identification number R476367; 
more particularly described in instrument number 2014000042 recorded in the Williamson 
County Official Public Records. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from LC-2-B (Local Commercial) to LC-2-A (Local Commercial) as 
shown in Exhibit “B”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 17th day of December, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 7th day of January, 2016. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 





11. Zoning & Subdivision Cases 15-Z-012, 15-CP-003, & 15-PP-007: Hold a public
hearing and consider action on the rezoning and approval of the Bar W
Commercial Concept Plan, Preliminary Plat, and PUD zoning for 49.737 acres,
more or less, generally located to the southeast of the intersection of Ronald W
Reagan Blvd and SH 29; WCAD Parcels R534768, R491376, R344166, R484168,
R534750, and R328209. Currently, the property is zoned Interim Single-Family
Rural (SFR-1-B). The applicant is proposing to zone the property to Planned Unit
Development (PUD) with a base zoning district of GC-3-C (General Commercial),
Leander, Williamson County, Texas. Applicant: David Armbrust (Armbrust &
Brown, PLLC) on behalf of Howard Barkley Wedemeyer and RR 29 Retail, LTD.

a) Staff Presentation
Robin Griffin, Senior Planner, stated that staff reviewed the request and
recommends approval of the PUD (Planned Unit Development) with a base
zoning district of GC-3-C (General Commercial).

b) Applicant Presentation
David Armbrust, applicant, explained the purpose for the zoning request.

c) Open Public Hearing
Chairman Sokol opened the public hearing.
No one wished to speak.

d) Close Public Hearing
Chairman Sokol closed the public hearing.

e) Discussion
Discussion took place.

f) Consider Action
Commissioner Schwendenmann moved to approve with staff recommendation
of PUD (Planned Unit Development) with a base zoning district of GC-3-C
(General Commercial). Commissioner Anderson seconded the motion. Motion
passed 5 to 1 with Commissioner Hines opposing.

Commissioner Hines opposed the request because he did not completely
understand the PUD regulations and the enforcement of the landscape
provisions.

12. Zoning Case 15-Z-020: Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning of a
parcel of land generally located to the southeast of the intersection of San Gabriel
Parkway and Bagdad Road/CR 279; 1.508 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel R476367.
Currently, the property is zoned LC-2-B (Local Commercial). The applicant is proposing
to zone the property to LC-3-A, Leander, Williamson County, Texas. Applicant: Danny
Nartin on behalf of JSL Commercial Investments, LLC.

a) Staff Presentation
Martin Siwek, Planner, stated that staff reviewed the request and recommends
approval of the requested LC-3-A (Local Commercial).

b) Applicant Presentation
Danny Martin applicant explained the purpose for the zoning request.

c) Open Public Hearing
Chairman Sokol opened the public hearing.
No one wished to speak.



d) Close Public Hearing
Chairman Sokol closed the public hearing.

e) Discussion
Discussion took place.

fl Consider Action
Commissioner Schwendenmann moved to deny the zoning request. There was
no second.

Vice Chair Allen moved to approve the zoning request of LC-3-A (Local
Commercial). Commissioner Coften seconded the motion. Motion passed 4 to 2
with Commissioner Schwendenmann and Commissioner Hines opposing.

Commissioner Schwendenmann opposed the request because there was no
change in the request from the first submittal.

Commissioner Hines opposed the request because fuel pumps were too close to
the residential development.

13. Zoning Case 15-Z-023: Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning of a
lot located at 600 Municipal Drive; legally described as Lot 4, Block A, Leander Heights
Section 2 Subdivision; 2.62 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel R036439. Currently, the
property is zoned SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family Urban / Manufactured Home). The
applicant is proposing to zone the property to Planned Unit Development (PUD) with a
base zoning district of MF-2-A (Multi-Family), Leander, Williamson County, Texas.
Applicant: David Smith on behalf of Municipal Texas Investment Group, LLC.

a) Staff Presentation
Robin Griffin, Senior Planner, stated that staff reviewed the request and
recommends approval of the PUD (Planned Unit Development) with a base
zoning district of MF-2-A (Multi-Family) and the condition that a building
rendering is provided.

b) Applicant Presentation
David Smith, applicant, was present for questions.

c) Open Public Hearing
Chairman Sokol opened the public hearing.
No one wished to speak.

d) Close Public Hearing
Chairman Sokol closed the public hearing.

e) Discussion
Discussion took place.

fl Consider Action
Commissioner Schwendenmann moved to approve the PUD (Planned Unit
Development) with a base zoning district of MF-2-A (Multi-Family) with the
following conditions:
1. Lighting shall be provided in common areas.
2. A six (6’) foot wide concrete sidewalk shall be constructed connecting Lion

Drive and Municipal Drive.
3. The Type A Architectural Component is modified to limit the amount of

stucco that qualifies as masonry to 35%.

Commissioner Cotten seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.



AGENDA ITEM # 13 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
December 17, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-Z-023: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of a lot located at 600 Municipal Drive; legally 
described as Lot 4, Block A, Leander Heights Section 2 
Subdivision; 2.62 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel R036439.  
Currently, the property is zoned SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family 
Urban / Manufactured Home). The applicant is proposing to zone 
the property to Planned Unit Development (PUD) with a base 
zoning district of MF-2-A (Multi-Family), Leander, Williamson 
County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: David Smith on behalf of Municipal Texas Investment 

Group, LLC. 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended to approve of staff recommendation 
with the following conditions at the December 10, 2015 meeting: 
1. Lighting shall be provided in common areas. 
2. A six (6’) foot wide concrete sidewalk shall be constructed 

connecting Lion Drive and Municipal Drive. 
3. The Type A Architectural Component is modified to limit the 

amount of stucco that qualifies as masonry to 35%. 
 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Location Exhibit 
 4.   Proposed Zoning Map 
 5. Aerial Map  
 6. Notification Map 
 7.   Letter of Intent 
 8.  Ordinance 



AGENDA ITEM # 13 
 

 9. Minutes-Planning & Zoning Commission December 10, 2015 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 12/11/2015 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-023 

MUNICIPAL TOWNHOMES PUD 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Municipal Texas Investment Group, LLC. 
 
Current Zoning: SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family Urban/Manufactured Home) 
    
Proposed Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development) with a base district of MF-2-A (Multi-

Family) 
  
Size and Location: The property is generally located at 600 Municipal Drive and is 

approximately 2.62 acres in size. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH SFU-2-B Camacho Elementary School 

EAST SFU/MH-2-B Existing Manufactured Home 

SOUTH TF-2-B Existing Manufactured Home 

WEST TF-2-B Existing Manufactured Home 
        

  

 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
USE COMPONENTS:   

PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: 
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits a condominium regime townhome development.  The intent of 
this zoning district is to cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility with 
adjacent single-family residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the 
region. 

 
MF – MULTI-FAMILY:   

Features:  Apartments (25 un./ac. if Type A; 18 un./ac. if Type B) 
Intent:  Development of multi-family dwelling structures. Such components are generally 

intended to serve as a buffer between single-family neighborhoods and more intensive uses 
such as commercial uses or arterial roadways.  Such components are also intended to create 
more variety in housing opportunities and in the fabric of the community but are intended to be 
utilized in small areas to avoid large tracts devoted to strictly multi-family residential 
development.  The goal is to avoid more than twenty-five (25) acres of contiguous land having 
a Multi-Family component.  Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification 
street. 

 
SITE COMPONENT:   

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with HC and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

  

 



Attachment # 1                 

ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENT:   
TYPE A:   

Features:  85% masonry; 5 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type A architectural component is intended to be utilized for high quality developments or to 

provide variety as an additional option for portions of a residential development and may be 
utilized in or adjacent to single-family uses.   

(2) This component is intended to be utilized for single-family development that backs up to, or sides 
to, a major thoroughfare. 

(3) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 
for harmonious land use transitions by applying this component to a less restrictive use or site 
component adjacent to a more restrictive use or site component.  This standard may be utilized to 
help ensure compatibility for non-residential uses, multi-family, two-family, townhouse or small 
lot residential development with adjacent property that is more restricted.   

(4) This component is intended to be utilized for buildings requiring heights greater than those 
provided in other architectural components.   

(5) This component may be utilized for any high profile development, for any property in a prominent 
location or at an important gateway to the community. 

(6) This component is not intended to become an involuntary standard for the majority of a single-
family subdivision, especially with SFR, SFE, SFS, SFU and SFC components. 

  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Create strong neighborhoods with a variety of housing choices.  
 Encourage a range of housing types at a variety of price points. 
 Neighborhood Residential is intended to accommodate a variety of housing types. The 

density and mix of housing types is dependent on a number of suitability factors 
including environmental constraints (such as steep topography and floodplain), the 
availability of sewer infrastructure, proximity to neighborhood and community centers, 
existing and planned parks and recreation sites, schools, and the road network. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone the property to the Municipal Townhome PUD (Planned 
Unit Development) in order to allow for condominium regime development of townhomes.  The 
property to the north is developed as the Camacho Elementary School.  The properties to the 
west, east, and south are all developed as manufactured homes.    
 
The applicant is proposing the base zoning district of MF-2-A (Multi-Family) in order to permit 
the condominium style development.  The PUD restricts the uses to attached townhomes with no 
more than eight units per building.  This requirement complies with the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance requirements for the SFT use component.  The proposed project will limit the density 
to 34 units and require alley loaded product. 
 

 



Attachment # 1                 

A PUD district is an appropriate district in this situation because it offers the applicant the 
opportunity to design a zoning district that will provide for a condominium style residential 
development with limits to the permitted density.  The Composite Zoning Ordinance does not 
currently include a district that would permit this type of development. 
 
This application includes the following higher standards and waivers. 
 

HIGHER STANDARDS WAIVERS 
COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE 

Limit density to 34 units Allows for condominium regime 
development 

Requires alley loaded product Reduced side paving setbacks 

Provide a trail system connecting Lion Drive to 
Municipal Drive - 

Provides landscaping in the perimeter side setbacks 
and the street setbacks 

Permits the single-family requirements for 
landscaping 

Limits fencing to wrought iron/decorative tubular 
metal along the perimeter and 3’ picket fencing on 
the interior 

- 
 

 
The Comprehensive Plan designates this property as Neighborhood Residential.  The intent is to 
accommodate a variety of housing types.  The proposed zoning district will provide for a higher 
density of housing and a new housing type in the area.   
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested PUD with the condition that a building rendering is 
submitted for review.  The proposed PUD will allow for the development of a condo regime 
project that will limit the overall density while maintaining high form standards.  The requested 
PUD meets the intent statements of the Composite Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 

 



OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 3

LISD LISD

LEO
CTR

WA
LK

ER
 AD

DI
TIO

N

ATKIN ADDITION

LEANDER
MSMASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 2 LION ACRES

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 2

CAMACHO
ES

5D

2A

3A

4C

3A

4C
3A3A

5D

4C

4C

LION DR

S 
W

ES
T 

DR

MUNICIPAL DR

TA
BL

ER
OC

K 
CI

R

RED BUD CV

BLUEBONNET TRL

AQUA BELL CV

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-023  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - Municipal Townhomes PUD
SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



WESTVIEWMEADOWSSEC 4

WESTVIEWMEADOWS

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 3

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 2

LISD LISD

LISD

LEO
CTR

WA
LK

ER
 A

DD
ITI

ON

ATKIN ADDITION

MASONS ADDITION

LEANDER
MSMASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 2

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 1

LION ACRES
LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 2

CAMACHO
ES

^ ^

^

S 
W

ES
T 

DR

W SOUTH ST

LION DR

MUNICIPAL DR

ME
SA

 D
R

HORSESHOE DR

S 
BR

US
HY

 S
T

W
OO

DL
EY

 R
D

PO
W

EL
L D

R

N 
W

ES
T D

R

MASON ST

SHERRY DR

BAGDAD STDO
VE

 S
ON

G 
DR

FO
SS

IL 
TR

L

N 
BR

US
HY

 S
T

BLUEBONNET TRL

W
IN

DM
ILL

 C
IR

ATKIN ST

W WILLIS ST

N 
TR

EA
SU

RE
 O

AK
S 

DR

PECAN GROVE DR

S 
TR

EA
SU

RE
 O

AK
S 

DR

OAKLAND CV

W WILLIS ST

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-023  Attachment #3 Future Land Use Map - Municipal TH PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Open Space
Mixed Use Corridor

Commercial Corridor
Neighborhood Center 
Community Center
Activity Center

Transit Supportive Mixed Use
Station Area Mixed Use
Old Town Mixed Use
Employment Mixed Use
Industrial District
Neighborhood Residential

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 3

LISD LISD

LEO
CTR

WA
LK

ER
 AD

DI
TIO

N

ATKIN ADDITION

LEANDER
MSMASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 2 LION ACRES

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 2

CAMACHO
ES

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

5D

2A

3A

4C

3A

4C
3A3A

5D

4C

4C

LION DR

S 
W

ES
T 

DR

MUNICIPAL DR

TA
BL

ER
OC

K 
CI

R

RED BUD CV

BLUEBONNET TRL

AQUA BELL CV

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-023  Attachment #4 Proposed Zoning Map - Municipal Townhomes PUD
SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Townhome



LION DR

MUNICIPAL DR

TA
BL

ER
OC

K C
IR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-023 Attachment #5
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Municipal Townhomes PUD

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



EXHIBIT A 
Municipal Drive Townhomes – PUD 

 
A. Purpose and Intent 

The Municipal Townhomes PUD is comprised of 2.62 acres, as described in Exhibit C 
(Field Notes).  The development of this property is a planned townhome community. 
 

B. Applicability and Base Zoning 
All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply with the City of Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance, except as established in this exhibit, titled Exhibit A.  For 
the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, the MF-2-A (Multi-
Family) district has been selected. 
 

C. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
Exhibit B attached is a conceptual site layout and land use plan intended to visually 
convey the design intent for the Municipal Townhomes community.  The design of the 
community is not final, and is subject to refinement during the platting and site planning 
stages.  This PUD zoning document does not constitute plat or site plan approval of the 
attached plan. 
 

D. Allowable Use 
1. The use shall be attached single-family townhome residential development.  
2. The unit size shall be a minimum of 900 square feet per attached unit. Patios (covered 

or uncovered) and decks are not included in this dimension.  
3. The maximum unit count shall be limited to 34 units. 
4. A maximum of eight attached units shall be permitted per building. 

 
E. Building Envelope Design Standards  

The Municipal Townhomes development will comply with the Development Standards 
set forth in the Table below for a condo regime site plan on private drives. 
 

 Building 
Setbacks 

Paving 
Setbacks 

Unit Width (minimum unit width) 20 ft. - 

Front Setback (from public streets) 25 ft. 20 ft. 

Front Setback (when front of the 
building faces another building) 15 ft. - 

Perimeter Setback (minimum) 25 ft. 5 ft. 

Building Separation (minimum) 10 ft.* - 

* Eave overhang is not included in calculations for minimum building separation.  A 
minimum of seven feet clear zone between building roof lines will be provided. 

1 
 



F. Private Drives 
1. Minimum centerline radius for private drives is 37.5 feet along tangent sections. 

Private drives will have a 20 or 25 foot wide pavement width measured from face of 
curb to face of curb (unless the Fire Department has additional requirements) with 18 
to 24 inch curb and gutter (which may also include mountable curb or stand up curb). 
Alley intersections will have a minimum of 25 foot inside radii. 

2. This PUD does not waive any Fire Code requirements.  The drive width is required to 
be 26 feet wide where a fire hydrant is located (30 foot bump-outs is permitted; no 
parking allowed).  Fire hydrants are required to be within 100 feet of an FDC (fire 
department connection) of each sprinklered building.  FDC’s are required on each 
building or remotely located on the site along the 26 foot drive (bump-out). 

3. Exhibit C, the Conceptual Site Plan, includes a cross section of the private drives. 
 

G. Architectural Criteria 
All townhomes shall comply with Article VII Architectural Components and Article VIII 
Architectural Standards, Type A of the Composite Zoning Ordinance unless modified 
herein. 
 

H. Garage and Parking Requirements 
1. All garages associated with townhomes shall comply with Article VIII Architectural 

Standards of the Composite Zoning Ordinance unless modified herein. 
2. Units will have single car garages with driveways that accommodate two other cars or 

three spaces per unit.  
3. All garages shall be rear entry. 
 

I. Lighting  
Street lighting is required at drive intersections with public streets. Street lighting is 
optional in the interior of the project.  

 
J. Sidewalks 

Sidewalks are not required in the interior of the project, but walkways are provided in the 
courtyard area and a pedestrian connection (which may be concrete or crushed granite) 
will be placed along the west property boundary connecting Lion and Municipal Drives. 
 

K. Landscape and Fencing 
1. This project shall comply with the applicable Landscape Requirements for single-

family districts as listed in Article VI of the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  In 
addition, this project shall comply with the multi-family provisions regarding Tree 
Preservation and Protection. 

2. The intent for this development is to provide an attractively landscaped vista. Each 
unit will install two 2 inch caliper trees and six  shrubs during the construction of 
each residential unit. Perimeter landscaping and screening will comply with the 
ordinance. 

3. Perimeter fencing shall be limited to wrought iron or decorative tubular metal.   
4. Picket fencing may be permitted in the common space as long as the fencing does not 

exceed three feet in height and the pickets are spaced a minimum of 3 inches apart.  A 

2 
 



15 foot wide open space shall be provided along the center of the common open 
space. 

5. Street trees and shrubs shall be planted in the front setbacks adjacent to Lion Drive 
and Municipal Drive at a ratio of 2 – 2 caliper inch trees and 4 shrubs per every 600 
square feet. 

6. Side setbacks along the west and east side of the property shall include shrubs planted 
at a ratio of 4 shrubs per every 600 square feet. 

 
  
 
 

3 
 





Municipal Drive Townhouses 

Legal Description 

 

Legal Description:  Lot 4, Block A of Leander Heights Section Two Subdivision in the E.D. 

Harmon Survey, A-6 in Williamson County, Texas, recorded in Cabinet B, Slide 105, Official 

Public Records of Williamson County, Texas. 

 

 

Field Notes of 2.62 acres, more or less, out of the E.D. Harmon Survey, A-6 in Williamson 

County, Texas recorded in Cabinet B, Slide 105, Official Public Records of Williamson County, 

Texas. 

Beginning at iron rod in the north line of said 2.62 acre tract at the intersection of the east line 

with the south right of way of Municipal drive for the northeast corner of the Tract; 

Thence S 21° 26’48” E along the east line a distance 577.67 feet to an iron rod at the intersection 

of the north right of way of Lion Drive; 

Thence S 69° 37’ W along the south line a distance of 200 feet; 

Thence along the west line N 21°27’ 28” W a distance 563.51 feet to an iron rod in the south 

right of way of Municipal Drive; 

Thence N 64° 13’02” E a distance 200.63 feet to the point of beginning. 

rstover
Text Box
EXHIBIT C





WESTVIEWMEADOWS

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 3

LISD LISD

LEO
CTR

WA
LK

ER
 AD

DI
TIO

N

ATKIN ADDITION

LEANDER
MSMASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 2 LION ACRES

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 2

CAMACHO
ES

^ ^

^

R405
146

R086397

R1
04

12
6 R399392

R4
43

37
3

R0
36

44
0

R0
36

43
8

R036437

R0
36

43
9

R036442

R031309

R036471

R036469 R036473

R036472

R036470

R036444

R0
36

44
1

R5
13

56
7

R4
13

42
2

R0
36

44
6

R0
36

43
4

R036479

R036157
R036474

R103107

R0
31

36
2

R479913

R036480

R4
85

95
0

R036481

R036443

R036155

R031336

R036487

R036475

R036488

R035352

R036478

R031237

R036476

R036484R036489

R3
88

45
6

R031238

R036477

R085390

R036156

R031337

R097988 R097989

R455978

R456958

R388458 R097991R097987

R455993

R097986

R036154

R097984 R097998

R097995

R455990

R455989

R4
27

54
6

R388457

R4
27

54
5

R3
88

45
5

R455
976

R455988

R456957

R455977

R418921

R455975

R455981 R418922

R455974

R455
979

R455982

R418941

R455
973

R418940

R418934

R418933

R418920

R036436
R455927

R418919

R455980R456968

R456964

R456965

R456959

R456967

R456963

R456960

R456966

R456969

R456962

R456961

R456970 R418923

R0
36

48
5

R418918 R418932

R036483

R097993

R097985

R455991R455992

R103116

R455994
R418939

R456956

R036215

LION DR

S 
W

ES
T 

DR

MUNICIPAL DR

BLUEBONNET TRLRED BUD CV

FO
SS

IL 
TR

L

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-023 

Attachment #7
Notification Map
Municipal Tomehomes PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
Public Notification Boundary

City Limits
WCAD Parcels

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 8





Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
SFU/MH-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY URBAN) TO PUD (PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT) WITH A BASE ZONING DISTRICT OF MF-2-A 
(MULTI-FAMILY); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcel of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property:”  That certain parcel of land being 2.62 acres, more or less, located in 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “C”, located at 
600 Municipal Drive; legally described as Lot 4, Block A of the Leander Heights, Section 2 
Subdivision; more particularly described in Instrument Number 2015070916 Official Public 
Records of Williamson County, Texas, and identified by tax identification number R036439. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family Urban/Manufactured Home) to PUD 
(Planned Unit Development) with a base zoning district of MF-2-A (Multi-Family) known as the 
Municipal Townhome PUD.  The PUD shall be developed and occupied in accordance with this 
Ordinance, the PUD plan attached as Exhibits “A”, “B”, and “C” which are hereby adopted and 
incorporated herein for all purposes, and the Composite Zoning Ordinance to the extent not 
amended by this Ordinance.  In the event of a conflict between the Composite Zoning Ordinance 
and the requirements for the Property set forth in this Ordinance, this Ordinance shall control.   
 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 17th day of December, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 7th day of January, 2016. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



EXHIBIT A 
Municipal Drive Townhomes – PUD 

 
A. Purpose and Intent 

The Municipal Townhomes PUD is comprised of 2.62 acres, as described in Exhibit C 
(Field Notes).  The development of this property is a planned townhome community. 
 

B. Applicability and Base Zoning 
All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply with the City of Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance, except as established in this exhibit, titled Exhibit A.  For 
the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, the MF-2-A (Multi-
Family) district has been selected. 
 

C. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
Exhibit B attached is a conceptual site layout and land use plan intended to visually 
convey the design intent for the Municipal Townhomes community.  The design of the 
community is not final, and is subject to refinement during the platting and site planning 
stages.  This PUD zoning document does not constitute plat or site plan approval of the 
attached plan. 
 

D. Allowable Use 
1. The use shall be attached single-family townhome residential development.  
2. The unit size shall be a minimum of 900 square feet per attached unit. Patios (covered 

or uncovered) and decks are not included in this dimension.  
3. The maximum unit count shall be limited to 34 units. 
4. A maximum of eight attached units shall be permitted per building. 

 
E. Building Envelope Design Standards  

The Municipal Townhomes development will comply with the Development Standards 
set forth in the Table below for a condo regime site plan on private drives. 
 

 Building 
Setbacks 

Paving 
Setbacks 

Unit Width (minimum unit width) 20 ft. - 

Front Setback (from public streets) 25 ft. 20 ft. 

Front Setback (when front of the 
building faces another building) 15 ft. - 

Perimeter Setback (minimum) 25 ft. 5 ft. 

Building Separation (minimum) 10 ft.* - 

* Eave overhang is not included in calculations for minimum building separation.  A 
minimum of seven feet clear zone between building roof lines will be provided. 

1 
 



F. Private Drives 
1. Minimum centerline radius for private drives is 37.5 feet along tangent sections. 

Private drives will have a 20 or 25 foot wide pavement width measured from face of 
curb to face of curb (unless the Fire Department has additional requirements) with 18 
to 24 inch curb and gutter (which may also include mountable curb or stand up curb). 
Alley intersections will have a minimum of 25 foot inside radii. 

2. This PUD does not waive any Fire Code requirements.  The drive width is required to 
be 26 feet wide where a fire hydrant is located (30 foot bump-outs is permitted; no 
parking allowed).  Fire hydrants are required to be within 100 feet of an FDC (fire 
department connection) of each sprinklered building.  FDC’s are required on each 
building or remotely located on the site along the 26 foot drive (bump-out). 

3. Exhibit C, the Conceptual Site Plan, includes a cross section of the private drives. 
 

G. Architectural Criteria 
All townhomes shall comply with Article VII Architectural Components and Article VIII 
Architectural Standards, Type A of the Composite Zoning Ordinance unless modified 
herein. 
 

H. Garage and Parking Requirements 
1. All garages associated with townhomes shall comply with Article VIII Architectural 

Standards of the Composite Zoning Ordinance unless modified herein. 
2. Units will have single car garages with driveways that accommodate two other cars or 

three spaces per unit.  
3. All garages shall be rear entry. 
 

I. Lighting  
Street lighting is required at drive intersections with public streets. Street lighting is 
optional in the interior of the project.  

 
J. Sidewalks 

Sidewalks are not required in the interior of the project, but walkways are provided in the 
courtyard area and a pedestrian connection (which may be concrete or crushed granite) 
will be placed along the west property boundary connecting Lion and Municipal Drives. 
 

K. Landscape and Fencing 
1. This project shall comply with the applicable Landscape Requirements for single-

family districts as listed in Article VI of the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  In 
addition, this project shall comply with the multi-family provisions regarding Tree 
Preservation and Protection. 

2. The intent for this development is to provide an attractively landscaped vista. Each 
unit will install two 2 inch caliper trees and six  shrubs during the construction of 
each residential unit. Perimeter landscaping and screening will comply with the 
ordinance. 

3. Perimeter fencing shall be limited to wrought iron or decorative tubular metal.   
4. Picket fencing may be permitted in the common space as long as the fencing does not 

exceed three feet in height and the pickets are spaced a minimum of 3 inches apart.  A 

2 
 



15 foot wide open space shall be provided along the center of the common open 
space. 

5. Street trees and shrubs shall be planted in the front setbacks adjacent to Lion Drive 
and Municipal Drive at a ratio of 2 – 2 caliper inch trees and 4 shrubs per every 600 
square feet. 

6. Side setbacks along the west and east side of the property shall include shrubs planted 
at a ratio of 4 shrubs per every 600 square feet. 

 
  
 
 

3 
 





Municipal Drive Townhouses 

Legal Description 

 

Legal Description:  Lot 4, Block A of Leander Heights Section Two Subdivision in the E.D. 

Harmon Survey, A-6 in Williamson County, Texas, recorded in Cabinet B, Slide 105, Official 

Public Records of Williamson County, Texas. 

 

 

Field Notes of 2.62 acres, more or less, out of the E.D. Harmon Survey, A-6 in Williamson 

County, Texas recorded in Cabinet B, Slide 105, Official Public Records of Williamson County, 

Texas. 

Beginning at iron rod in the north line of said 2.62 acre tract at the intersection of the east line 

with the south right of way of Municipal drive for the northeast corner of the Tract; 

Thence S 21° 26’48” E along the east line a distance 577.67 feet to an iron rod at the intersection 

of the north right of way of Lion Drive; 

Thence S 69° 37’ W along the south line a distance of 200 feet; 

Thence along the west line N 21°27’ 28” W a distance 563.51 feet to an iron rod in the south 

right of way of Municipal Drive; 

Thence N 64° 13’02” E a distance 200.63 feet to the point of beginning. 

rstover
Text Box
EXHIBIT C





d) Close Public Hearing
Chairman Sokol closed the public hearing.

e) Discussion
Discussion took place.

f) Consider Action
Commissioner Schwendenmann moved to deny the zoning request. There was
no second.

Vice Chair Allen moved to approve the zoning request of LC-3-A (Local
Commercial). Commissioner Cotten seconded the motion. Motion passed 4 to 2
with Commissioner Schwendenmann and Commissioner Hines opposing.

Commissioner Schwendenmann opposed the request because there was no
change in the request from the first submittal.

Commissioner Hines opposed the request because fuel pumps were too close to
the residential development.

13. Zoning Case 15-Z-023: Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning of a
lot located at 600 Municipal Drive; legally described as Lot 4, Block A, Leander Heights
Section 2 Subdivision; 2.62 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel R03643g. Currently, the
property is zoned SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family Urban I Manufactured Home). The
applicant is proposing to zone the property to Planned Unit Development (PUD) with a
base zoning district of MF-2-A (Multi-Family), Leander, Williamson County, Texas.
Applicant: David Smith on behalf of Municipal Texas Investment Group, LLC.

a) Staff Presentation
Robin Griffin, Senior Planner, stated that staff reviewed the request and
recommends approval of the PUD (Planned Unit Development) with a base
zoning district of MF-2-A (Multi-Family) and the condition that a building
rendering is provided.

b) Applicant Presentation
David Smith, applicant, was present for questions.

c) Open Public Hearing
Chairman Sokol opened the public hearing.
No one wished to speak.

d) Close Public Hearing
Chairman Sokol closed the public hearing.

e) Discussion
Discussion took place.

0 Consider Action
Commissioner Schwendenmann moved to approve the PUD (Planned Unit
Development) with a base zoning district of MF-2-A (Multi-Family) with the
following conditions:
1. Lighting shall be provided in common areas.
2. A six (6’) foot wide concrete sidewalk shall be constructed connecting Lion

Drive and Municipal Drive.
3. The Type A Architectural Component is modified to limit the amount of

stucco that qualifies as masonry to 35%.

Commissioner Cotten seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.



AGENDA ITEM # 14 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
December 17, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-Z-032: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on rezoning of two parcels of land located at 602 South Gabriel Dr; 
6.19 acres more or less; WCAD Parcels R338733 and R035910.  
Currently, the property is zoned Interim SFS-2-B (Single-Family 
Suburban).   The applicant is proposing to zone the property to 
SFT-2-B (Single-Family Townhome), Leander, Williamson 
County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Ronald E & Serita Kay Butler. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

recommended to approve the SFT-2-A (Single-Family Townhome) 
district for the north portion of the property which includes parcel 
R338733 and is approximately 560 feet to the south of Gabriel 
Drive with a 4 to 2 vote (Commission Cotten and Chair Sokol 
opposing) at the December 10, 2015 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Location Exhibit 
 4.   Proposed Zoning Map 
 5. Aerial Map  
 6. Notification Map 
 7.   Letter of Intent 
 8.  Ordinance 
 9. Minutes-Planning & Zoning Commission December 10, 2015 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 12/11/2015 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-032 
602 S SAN GABRIEL DR 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Ronald E. & Serita Kay Butler 
 
Current Zoning: Interim SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban) 
    
Proposed Zoning: SFT-2-B (Single-Family Townhome) 
  
Size and Location: The property is located approximately 70 ft east from the southeast corner 

of the intersection of S. San Gabriel Dr and N Hwy 183 and is 
approximately 6.19 acres in size. 

 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, AICP, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 

ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH Interim SFS-2-B Developed single-family home 

EAST Interim SFS-2-B Developed single-family home 

SOUTH Interim SFS-2-B Developed single-family homes 

WEST OCL/ETJ Developed single-family homes (High Gabriel West 
Subdivision) 

        

 
  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
USE COMPONENTS:   

SFT – SINGLE-FAMILY TOWNHOUSE:   
Features:  2,000 sq. ft. lot min; 900 sq. ft. living area min. 
Intent:  development of single-family attached dwellings on very small sized lots and for other uses 

that are compatible and complimentary to attached residential development. This component is 
generally intended as follows: 

(1) To provide an orderly transition and serve as a buffer between larger lot neighborhoods and more 
intensive uses such as multi-family or commercial uses or arterial roadways. 

(2) To create more variety in housing opportunities and in the fabric of the neighborhoods. 
(3) To include or be located within six hundred feet of parkland or other recreational open space. 
(4) To be located in planned communities of greater than 100 acres and comprising less than ten 

percent (10%) of the lots, or to provide infill opportunities in appropriate areas of the City such as 
in areas under transition. 

Frontage for such lots shall be provided by a street with a ROW of fifty-six (56) feet or greater 
and a pavement width of thirty-six (36) feet or greater unless access to garages on such lots is 
from an alley. 

 
SITE COMPONENT:   

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with HC and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENT:   

TYPE A:   
Features:  85% masonry; 5 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type A architectural component is intended to be utilized for high quality developments or to 

provide variety as an additional option for portions of a residential development and may be 
utilized in or adjacent to single-family uses.   

(2) This component is intended to be utilized for single-family development that backs up to, or sides 
to, a major thoroughfare. 

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

(3) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 
for harmonious land use transitions by applying this component to a less restrictive use or site 
component adjacent to a more restrictive use or site component.  This standard may be utilized to 
help ensure compatibility for non-residential uses, multi-family, two-family, townhouse or small 
lot residential development with adjacent property that is more restricted.   

(4) This component is intended to be utilized for buildings requiring heights greater than those 
provided in other architectural components.   

(5) This component may be utilized for any high profile development, for any property in a prominent 
location or at an important gateway to the community. 

(6) This component is not intended to become an involuntary standard for the majority of a single-
family subdivision, especially with SFR, SFE, SFS, SFU and SFC components. 

 
TYPE B:   
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% all stories; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 
 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Create strong neighborhoods with a variety of housing choices.  
 Encourage a range of housing types at a variety of price points. 
 The purpose of the Mixed Use Corridor designations is preserve the integrity of the 

corridor and maintain mobility.  This corridor allows for a variety of residential types, 
such as small-lot single-family, townhomes, duplexes and quadplexes, civic and 
institutional uses (schools and places of worship) and small professional offices that 
complement residential development.  Limited neighborhood-serving commercial uses 
and higher-density residential are appropriate at intersections. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone the property to SFT-2-B (Single-Family Townhome) 
district in order to allow for the future development of townhomes.  The properties located to the 
north, south, and east are zoned as Interim SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban) district.  The 
property to the west is located within the City of Leander ETJ, and is the developed High Gabriel 
West residential subdivision.   
 
The applicant’s request for an SFT-2-B district is compliant with the City’s adopted Future Land 
Use Plan.  It is located within a Mixed Use Corridor which seeks to locate high density single-

3 
 



Attachment # 1                 

family uses and limited compatible commercial uses in between development centers. A variety 
of small lot residential products are to be included within the Mixed Use Corridor  
 
The zoning request is also compliant with most of the intent statements from the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance. The SFT Use Component is intended to provide for a transition and serve as a 
buffer between larger lot neighborhoods and more intensive uses such as multi-family, 
commercial, or arterial roadways. It is intended to create more variety in housing opportunities 
and in the fabric of the neighborhood.  It is also intended to provide infill opportunities in 
appropriate areas of the City such as areas under transition.  The SFT Use component is 
supposed to be located within 600 ft of a park or open space. The property presently does not 
meet this intent statement of the ordinance, but it could be accounted for with the inclusion of 
park or open space at the time of development of the property. 
 
The proposed Type 2 Site Component is the typical Site Component paired with residential 
districts. It is appropriate and compatible with the SFT Use Component. Further, the Type B 
Architectural Component is also compatible this request. It requires that 85% masonry of the 
first story of builds be comprised of masonry and that each story thereafter is comprised of 50% 
masonry. The Type B Site Component requires a minimum of four architectural design features 
on the front elevations of the building. However, the Type A Architectural Component is called 
to be utilized by the intent statement of the Composite Zoning Ordinance when single-family 
development backs up or sides to major thoroughfares.  The Type A Architectural Component 
requires 85% masonry on all stories with a minimum of five design features on the front 
elevation. 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the SFT-2-A district.  The proposed zoning request meets the goal 
statements of the Future Land Use Plan, it is in compliance with the Future Land Use Map, and 
meets the intent statements of the Composite Zoning Ordinance. 

4 
 



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

US 183 NB

US
 18

3 S
B

US 183

CR 266

RIVER RUN

RIVA RIDGE DR

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

HI
GH

 G
AB

RI
EL

 D
R

TALON GRASP TRL

CR
 27

0

SIGNAL HILL DR

GREEN VALLEY DR

MALLARD LN

S H
OO

T O
W

L L
N

WHITEWING DR

GL
EN

 O
AK

 LN

KI
NG

FIS
HE

R 
LN

KI
NG

 E
LD

ER
 LN

HIGH GABRIEL EAST

SKYVIEW TER

INCA DOVE LN

NO
RT

H H
ILL

 CI
R

MA
RC

HE
ET

A 
WA

Y

LA
RK

 S
T

MAGPIE GOOSE LN

ARROYO CIR

BA
R R

YD
ER

 TR
L

SNOWY EGRET LN

GOLDEN BUTTERFLY DR

US
 18

3 S
B

US 183

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-032  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - 602 S San Gabriel Dr

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Subject Property
City Limits

Annexation
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Townhome



US 183 NB

US 183 SB

RIVA RIDGE DR

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

US 183

RIVER RUN

HIGH GABRIEL EAST

GREEN VALLEY DR

NO
RT

H H
ILL

 CI
R

ARROYO CIR

HIGH GABRIEL DR

SIGNAL HILL DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-032  Attachment #3 Future Land Use Map - 602 S San Gabriel Dr

CITY MAPË

City Limits
Subject Property
Open Space
Mixed Use Corridor

Commercial Corridor
Neighborhood Center 
Community Center
Activity Center

Transit Supportive Mixed Use
Station Area Mixed Use
Old Town Mixed Use
Employment Mixed Use
Industrial District
Neighborhood Residential

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

US
 18

3 N
B

US
 18

3 S
B

US 183

RIVA RIDGE DR

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

RIVER RUN

CR 266

GREEN VALLEY DR

TALON GRASP TRL

S H
OO

T O
W

L L
N

GL
EN

 O
AK

 LN

HIGH GABRIEL DR

HIGH GABRIEL EAST

SIGNAL HILL DR

NO
RT

H H
ILL

 CI
R

MA
RC

HE
ET

A 
WA

Y

ARROYO CIR

GOLDEN BUTTERFLY DR

BAR RYDER TRL

US 183

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-023  Attachment #4 Proposed Zoning Map - 602 S San Gabriel Dr

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Townhome

Proposed SFT-2-B



US
 18

3 N
B

US
 18

3 S
B

US 183

RIVA RIDGE DR

RIVER RUN

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

GREEN VALLEY DR

HIGH GABRIEL EAST

NO
RT

H H
ILL

 CI
R

HIGH GABRIEL DR

ARROYO CIR

SIGNAL HILL DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-032 Attachment #5
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
602 S San Gabriel Dr

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



R474020

R0
32

25
0

R032229

R5
24

55
3

R032224

R5
24

55
1

R032225

R032223

R032280

R0
32

22
7

R0
32

10
5

R3
189

94

R0
32

25
3

R0
35

90
8

R3
38

73
3

R3
24

90
5

R032279

R035906

R474019

R0
35

90
9

R032216

R035
905

R376
519

R035
904

R035910

R032226

R0
359

03

R356827

R0
35

91
9

R035
90

2

R0
35

29
8

R0
35

92
0

R0
35

91
2

R0
35

91
3

R4
74

02
2

R0
35

91
8

R0
35

81
1

R032284

R0
35

92
2

R0
35

92
1

R338964

R035849

R0
35

91
4

R035900

R032228

R035812

R035
901

R035916

R035807

R035893

R035871

R035
894

R035847
R035

91
5

R315695

R035862

R381473

R035852
R035

892
R0

358
99

R0
35

80
9

R0
357

78

R035896

R0
35

84
8

R035863

R032251

R106586

R0
35

70
9

R035843

R035846

R035813

R035
299

R035839

R443082

R035814R035816

R3
52

95
4

R035851

R035838

R035872

R035864
R035854

R035895

R035783

R035907

R035817

R035845

R035775

R035860

R0
35

84
4

R035764

R035865

R035840

R0
35

89
1

R035842

R035
859

R035858

R035815

R035781
R035782

R035772

R0
35

80
6

R035774

R035857

R035780

R035841

R0
35

77
0

R035853

R035866

R035779

R035765
R035776

R035773

R035867

R035861

R035856

R4
63

16
8

R035868

R0
35

80
5

R0
35

76
6

R056439

R0
35

76
1

R0
35

76
2

R035763
R035855

R035890

R083495

R035898

R032222

R527492

R083494

R527490
R527491

R049517

R035710

R035818

R035889

R035804

US
 18

3 N
B

US
 18

3 S
B

RIVA RIDGE DR

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

US 183

RIVER RUN

GREEN VALLEY DR

NO
RT

H H
ILL

 CI
R

ARROYO CIR

HIGH GABRIEL DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-032 

Attachment #6
Notification Map
602 S San Gabriel Dr

CITY MAPË

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Subject Property
Public Notification Boundary

City Limits
WCAD Parcels



msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 7



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

 
ORDINANCE NO #  

 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING TWO PARCELS OF LAND 
FROM INTERIM SFS-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY SUBURBAN) TO SFT-2-B 
(SINGLE-FAMILY TOWNHOME); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcels of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain parcels of land being 6.19 acres, more or less, located in 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A”, located at 
602 S Gabriel Drive, Williamson County, Texas; legally described as Lots 16 and 17 of the High 
Gabriel East Subdivision; identified by Williamson County tax identification number R338733 and 
R035910; more particularly described in instrument number 1984014834 recorded in the 
Williamson County Official Public Records. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from Interim SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban) to SFT-2-B (Single-
Family Townhome) as shown in Exhibit “A”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 17th day of December, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 7th day of January, 2016. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

US
 18

3 N
B

US
 18

3 S
B

US 183

RIVA RIDGE DR

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

RIVER RUN

CR 266

GREEN VALLEY DR

TALON GRASP TRL

S 
HO

OT
 O

W
L L

N

GL
EN

 O
AK

 LN

HIGH GABRIEL DR

HIGH GABRIEL EAST

SIGNAL HILL DR

NO
RT

H H
ILL

 CI
R

MA
RC

HE
ET

A 
W

AY

ARROYO CIR

GOLDEN BUTTERFLY DR

BAR RYDER TRL

US 183

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-023  Exhibit A 602 S San Gabriel Dr

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Townhome

SFT-2-B



14. Zoning Case 15-Z-032: Hold a public hearing and consider action on rezoning of two
parcels of land located at 602 South Gabriel Dr; 6.19 acres more or less; WCAD Parcels
R338733 and R035910. Currently, the property is zoned Interim SFS-2-B (Single
Family Suburban). The applicant is proposing to zone the property to SFT-2-B (Single-
Family Townhome), Leander, Williamson County, Texas. Applicant: Ronald E & Serita
Kay Butler.

a) Staff Presentation
Martin Siwek, Planner, stated that staff reviewed the request and recommends
approval of the SFT-2-A (Single-Family Townhome) district.

b) Applicant Presentation
David Cavalier spoke on behalf of the applicant and explained the purpose for
the zoning request.

c) Open Public Hearing
Chairman Sokol opened the public hearing.

Darren Brummitt discussed concerns regarding the building materials,
height, preservation of trees, density of project, and availability of
infrastructure.

Bruce Chatham discussed concerns regarding the adjacent uses and tree
preservation

Jolaine Chatham discussed concerns regarding the density, perimeter
screening fencing, and the current fence that is encroaching on to her
property.

d) Close Public Hearing
Chairman Sokol closed the public hearing.

e) Discussion
Discussion took place.

f) Consider Action
Commissioner Hines moved to approve the north portion of the property with a
zoning of SFT-2-A (Single-Family Townhome) which includes parcel R338733
and is 4.03 acres more or less in size. Commissioner Anderson seconded the
motion. Motion passed 4 to 2 with Commissioner Cotten and Chair Sokol
opposing.

Commissioner Cotten opposed the request because a plan needs to be
provided to demonstrate what the project will look like.

Chair Sokol opposed the request because he agreed with Commissioner Cotten
and felt that the developer needs to provide a site plan.



AGENDA ITEM # 15 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
December 17, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-TOD-Z-035: Hold a public hearing and consider 

action on rezoning of one parcel of land generally located to the 
south of the intersection of US 183 and 183A Toll Road; 4.654 
acres more or less; WCAD Parcel R433105.  Currently, the 
property is zoned PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit 
Oriented Development) and the applicant is proposing to amend 
the PUD to designate the base zoning district as GC-3-B (General 
Commercial) as permitted by the SmartCode, Leander, Williamson 
County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Bruce Nakfoor on behalf of West Tex Trading Retire, 

Ltd.  
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of staff recommendation 
including the following conditions at the December 10, 2015 
meeting. 
1. The C-Street standards apply to both roadways. 
2. Fuel pumps may be located closer to the street than the 

building on the northern side of the property, but no closer to 
the street than the building on the west or east sides. 

3. The lighting level at the boundary of the property shall be no 
more than 1.0 foot candle. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Future Land Use Map 
 4.   Proposed Zoning Map  
 5. Aerial Map 
 6. Notification map 



AGENDA ITEM # 15 

 7. PUD Notes and Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan 
 8.  Letter of Intent 
 9.  Ordinance 
 10. Minutes-Planning & Zoning Commission December 10, 2015 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 12/11/2015 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-035 

THE TRIANGLE PUD 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: West Texas Trading Retirement, Ltd.  
 
Current Zoning: PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development) 
    
Proposed Zoning: PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development) 

with a base zoning district of GC-3-B (General Commercial) 
  
Size and Location: The property is generally located to the south of the intersection of US 183 

and 183A Toll Road and includes 4.654 acres, more or less. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH PUD/TOD Undeveloped Property 

EAST PUD/TOD Undeveloped Property 
Proposed Bryson Subdivision 

SOUTH PUD/TOD Undeveloped Property 

WEST PUD/TOD Undeveloped Property 
        

  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE & SMARTCODE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
PUD/TOD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT/TRANSIT ORIENTED 
DEVELOPMENT: 

The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits a mixed-residential community.  The intent of this zoning district 
is to cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility with adjacent single-family 
residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the region. 

 
CONVENTIONAL ZONE: 

The Conventional Development Sector allows conventional single-use and mixed-use 
development with some basic design standards to provide a transition to adjacent 
neighborhoods and pedestrian-oriented communities, and for the possibility of future retrofit 
of the area to a more pedestrian-oriented pattern. 
 

USE COMPONENT 
GC – GENERAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features:  Any use in LC plus bar, nightclub, entertainment venues, hospital, hotel, liquor store, 
office/warehouse, vehicle and equipment sales, leasing and repair, furniture sales, pet shop, 
wholesale activities less than 3,500 sq. ft. 

Intent:  Development of small to large scale commercial, retail, and commercial service uses 
located in high traffic areas.  Access to this component should be provided by an arterial street.  
The heaviest concentration of this component should be located at intersections of arterial 
streets. 

 
SITE COMPONENT 
TYPE 3:   

Features:  Accessory buildings up to 30% of primary building; accessory dwellings; drive-thru 
service; limited outdoor display and storage; outdoor fueling and washing of vehicles; 
overhead service doors, no indoor parking required. 

Intent:   
(1) A Type 3 site component is intended to be utilized with LO and LC use components where 

adjacent to less restricted districts to provide for a land use transition. 
(2) This component is intended to be utilized with residential components where accessory dwellings 

or additional accessory structures are appropriate and are not provided for in the Type 1 or 2 site 
components. 

(3) This component is intended to be combined with LO, LC, GC, HC and HI components where it is 
appropriate to utilize the outdoor site area for outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and 
storage or accessory buildings. 

 
  

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENT 
TYPE B:   

Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% all stories; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide a balanced mix of complementary uses that support a strong and diverse tax base.  
 Promote the Transit Oriented Development (TOD) as an urban destination within a 

suburban community. 
 The purpose of the Commercial Corridor designation is to allow for additional 

commercial development along corridors already devoted to primarily commercial and 
office uses. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting an amendment to the PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/ Transit 
Oriented Development) district in to order to develop a commercial project.  The surrounding 
properties are all designated as Conventional District within the TOD (Transit Oriented 
Development).  All of the properties are undeveloped except for the property to the east.  The 
property to the east is part of the proposed Bryson Subdivision that is currently under 
construction.    
 
The proposed base zoning for this PUD is GC-3-B (General Commercial).  This use component 
permits the development of small to large scale commercial, retail, and commercial service uses 
located in high traffic areas.  Access to this component should be provided by an arterial street.  
The heaviest concentration of this component should be located at intersections of arterial streets. 
 
The requested Type 3 site component would permit outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor storage 
and/or display, overhead doors, drive-through service lanes and carwashes.  This use component 
is intended to be combined with the GC use component where it is appropriate to utilize the 
outdoor site area for outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and storage or accessory 
buildings.  The Type B Architectural Component requires that 85% of the first story walls are 
comprised of masonry and 50% of each additional story.  In addition, four architectural features 
are required. 
 

3 
 



Attachment # 1                 

The Conventional Development (CD) Sector Standards will apply to this project.  US 183 is 
designated as a B-Street and 183A Toll is designated as a C-Street.  These standards are listed 
below.   
 
Standards Specific to B-Streets in Commercial Zoning Districts 

a. Surface parking consisting of no more than one drive aisle with head-in parking spaces 
on each side of the drive aisle are permitted between the building and the right-of-way. A 
landscape screen or wall no taller than 4 feet in height shall be constructed and 
maintained to screen the view of the parking from the adjacent ROW. 

b. All drive aisles shall be designed and easements conveyed to connect to existing or future 
drive aisles on adjacent properties. 

c. Sidewalks and street trees in compliance with the Composite Zoning Ordinance shall be 
required between the parking lot and the right-of-way. 

d. Sidewalks at least 12 feet wide shall be provided between the building facade and the 
parking lot, with trees in grates or planter boxes every 30 feet. 

e. A continuous building frontage is required.  The frontage may only be broken by a street, 
pedestrian passage, courtyard or similar feature approved by the Planning Director.  For 
phased building construction within a block, a screen wall or landscape hedge shall be 
constructed at the building frontage line prior to building construction. 

f. The provision of pedestrian amenities such as benches, outdoor dining areas, awnings 
over sidewalks and other similar features is encouraged.  The Planning Director may 
provide a reduction of the minimum parking or landscaping requirement of up to 15% for 
the provision of pedestrian amenities. 

 
Standards Specific to Lots & Buildings on B-Streets in Commercial Zoning Districts 

a. Buildings fronting on A- and B-Streets shall meet the Type A Architectural Component 
of the Composite Zoning Ordinance. 

b. Buildings fronting on A- and B-Streets shall provide a primary entrance facing the street 
accessing the required sidewalk. 
 

Standards Specific to C-Streets in Commercial Zoning Districts 
a. Surface parking lots between buildings and the right-of-way shall be no deeper than 300 

feet nor wider than 600 feet.    
b. Surface parking lots between buildings and the right-of-way shall be designed as a 

pattern of internal streets and parking blocks. The parking blocks may have standard 
parking spaces and aisles. The internal streets shall have travel lanes, curbs, street trees, 
sidewalks and utility easements and may have parallel parking. The parking blocks shall 
be left free of easements with the exception of those for drainage and parking lot lighting 
in order to accommodate future construction of buildings. 

 
Standards Specific to Lots & Buildings on C-Streets in Commercial Zoning Districts 

a. Buildings fronting on C-Streets shall meet the Type A or Type B Architectural 
Component of the Composite Zoning Ordinance. 

 
  

4 
 



Attachment # 1                 

The applicant is requesting the following waivers: 
 The C-Street standards apply to both roadways. 
 Fuel pumps may be located closer to the street than the building on the northern side of 

the property, but no closer to the street than the building on the west or east sides. 
 The lighting level at the boundary of the property shall be no more than 1.0 foot candle. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested TOD/PUD amendment with the following waivers: 
 The C-Street standards apply to both roadways. 
 Fuel pumps may be located closer to the street than the building on the northern side of 

the property, but no closer to the street than the building on the west or east sides. 
 The lighting level at the boundary of the property shall be no more than 1.0 foot candle. 

 
The proposed land use is compatible with the neighboring properties.  Staff recommends 
approval of the pump location due to the unusual shape of the lot and the amount of street 
frontage.  The northern portion of the property is bound by a connector roadway that transitions 
from US 183 and 183A Toll Road.   
 
The intent of the B-Street standards is to provide for a pedestrian friendly, walkable area.  A 
continuous building frontage is required along this street type.  In this situation, one side of the 
property would be required to comply with B-Street standards and the other side would comply 
with the C-Street standards.  Staff supports applying the C-Street standards to both roadways 
because this property does not justify the need for the B-Street requirements.  This area will be 
challenging to require walkable area. 
 
The proposed lighting level will not impact any adjacent residential uses and the current 
standards regarding full cut off fixtures still applies. 
 
This request meets the intent statements of the Composite Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 

5 
 



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

US
 18

3

CR
 27

6

US
 18

3 N
B

US
 18

3 S
B

18
3A

 TO
LL

 R
D 

FR
 S

B

18
3A

 TO
LL

 R
D 

FR
 N

B

CHITALPA ST

BRYSON RIDGE TRL

AMANDAS WAY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

BRYSON RIDGE TRL

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-035  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - The Triangle

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

SECTORS
OS Open Space
CD Conventional Sector

S1 General Sector
S2 Station Sector  
S3 Old Town Sector

TRANSECTS
T4 General Urban

T5 Urban Center
T6 Urban Core
SD Special District
Civic Building

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !
PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



BRYSON

CR
 27

6

US
 18

3

US
 18

3 N
B

US
 18

3 S
B

18
3A

 TO
LL

 R
D 

FR
 S

B

18
3A

 TO
LL

 R
D 

FR
 N

B

AMANDAS WAY

CH
ITA

LP
A S

T

HERITAGE GROVE RD

HIGH GABRIEL EAST

PVR 949

GERMANDER RD

BRYSON RIDGE TRL

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-035  Attachment #3 Future Land Use Map - The Triangle

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Open Space
Mixed Use Corridor

Commercial Corridor
Neighborhood Center 
Community Center
Activity Center

Transit Supportive Mixed Use
Station Area Mixed Use
Old Town Mixed Use
Employment Mixed Use
Industrial District
Neighborhood Residential

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

US
 18

3

CR
 27

6

US
 18

3 N
B

US
 18

3 S
B

18
3A

 TO
LL

 R
D 

FR
 S

B

18
3A

 TO
LL

 R
D 

FR
 N

B

CHITALPA ST

BRYSON RIDGE TRL

AMANDAS WAY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

BRYSON RIDGE TRL

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-035  Attachment #4 Proposed Zoning Map - The Triangle

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

SECTORS
OS Open Space
CD Conventional Sector

S1 General Sector
S2 Station Sector  
S3 Old Town Sector

TRANSECTS
T4 General Urban

T5 Urban Center
T6 Urban Core
SD Special District
Civic Building

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !
PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



US
 18

3

CR
 27

6

US
 18

3 N
B

US
 18

3 S
B

183A TOLL RD FR SB

18
3A

 TO
LL

 R
D 

FR
 N

B

AMANDAS WAY

BRYSON RIDGE TRL

HERITAGE GROVE RD

CH
ITA

LP
A S

T

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-035 Attachment #5
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
The Triangle

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



R0
32

22
1

R4
85

83
4

R0
32

23
9

R031728

R0
32

23
4

R032214

R032233

R4
85

83
2

R032207

R4
33

10
5

R321815

R321816

R0
32

20
9

R032237

R321813

R462742

R507158

R4
33

10
3

R0
32

23
8

R031721

R0
32

23
5

R321817

R0
32

22
2

R032219

R054296

R433094

R433108

US
 18

3

CR
 27

6

US
 18

3 N
B

US
 18

3 S
B

18
3A

 TO
LL

 R
D 

FR
 S

B

18
3A

 TO
LL

 R
D 

FR
 N

B

BRYSON RIDGE TRL

AMANDAS WAY

CH
ITA

LP
A S

T

HERITAGE GROVE RD

BRYSON RIDGE TRL

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-035  

Attachment #6
Notification Map
The Triangle

CITY MAPË

Public Notification Boundary
Subject Property

City Limits
WCAD Parcels

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



EXHIBIT A 
 

The Triangle Planned Unit Development 
 
 

A. Purpose and Intent 
 
The Triangle PUD is composed of approximately 4.654 acres, as described in Exhibit C 
(Field Notes). The development of this property is planned as a commercial development. 
 
 
B. Applicability and Base Zoning 
 

1. All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance and the Conventional Development (CD) 
Sector Standards, except as established in this exhibit, titled Exhibit A. 
 

2. For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, the GC-3-B 
(General Commercial) base zoning district has been selected from the Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance for the proposed commercial development. 
 

3. The Conventional Development (CD) Sector Standard regarding the A-Street, 
B-Street, and C-Street Standards shall be modified as follows: 

 
C-Street Standards shall apply to the development along US 183.   

 
4. The general layout of the property is shown in Exhibit B.  The pumps may be 

located in front of the building on the northern side of the property, but shall not 
be located closer to the street than the building on the west or east sides. 

 
5. The lighting level at the boundary of the property shall be no more than 1.0 

foot-candle.   
 

 
C. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
 
Exhibit B (attached) is a conceptual site layout and land use plan intended to visually 
convey the proposed location of the commercial development.  This plan does not 
constitute plat or site plan approval. 



! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

US
 18

3

18
3A

 TO
LL

 R
D 

FR
 S

B

US
 18

3 N
B

CR 276

183A TOLL RD FR NB

US
 18

3 S
B

BRYSON RIDGE TRL

BRYSON RIDGE TRL

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-035

Exhibit B
Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan
The Triangle PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

This Plan is conceptual.  All applicable City Ordinances shall 
apply unless otherwise noted in the PUD Notes

PUMPS

PUMPS

BLDG





rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 8



Amending Ordinance 14-042-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT KNOWN AS THE TRANSIT 
ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT FOR A PARCEL OF LAND BY 
CREATING THE TRIANGLE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT; 
MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED 
MATTERS. 
 

 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property"), which is located 
within the planned unit development known as the Transit Oriented Development District (the 
“TODD”), has requested that the Property be rezoned and a planned unit development plan (the 
“PUD plan”) for the Triangle Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) be adopted; 
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
 
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2. Amendment of TODD Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 14-042-00, as amended, the City of 
Leander TODD Ordinance, is hereby modified and amended for these Properties as set forth in 
Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability.  The TODD Ordinance is hereby amended by creation of the Triangle 
PUD, which are herein referred to as the “Property,” generally located south of the intersection of 
US 183 and 183A Toll Road, and more particularly described as follows: 4.152 acres out of the 
Charles Cochran Survey, Abstract Number 134, located in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, 
being more particularly shown and described in Exhibit “C”; and identified by tax identification 
number R433105; more particularly described in instrument number 1991028254 recorded in the 
Williamson County Official Public Records.   
 
Section 4. Property Rezoned. The Property is zoned to the planned unit development district 
known as the Triangle PUD within the TODD.  The Property shall be developed and occupied in 
compliance with the PUD plan attached hereto as Exhibits “A”, “B”, and “C”, the Conventional 
Development Sector Standards of the Smart Code (defined in the TODD Ordinance) and as 
amended by the PUD, the Composite Zoning Ordinance, and other applicable regulations of the 
City.   



Amending Ordinance 14-042-00 

Section 4. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 5.Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 6.Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 17th day of December, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 7th day of January, 2016. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

The Triangle Planned Unit Development 
 
 

A. Purpose and Intent 
 
The Triangle PUD is composed of approximately 4.654 acres, as described in Exhibit C 
(Field Notes). The development of this property is planned as a commercial development. 
 
 
B. Applicability and Base Zoning 
 

1. All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance and the Conventional Development (CD) 
Sector Standards, except as established in this exhibit, titled Exhibit A. 
 

2. For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, the GC-3-B 
(General Commercial) base zoning district has been selected from the Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance for the proposed commercial development. 
 

3. The Conventional Development (CD) Sector Standard regarding the A-Street, 
B-Street, and C-Street Standards shall be modified as follows: 

 
C-Street Standards shall apply to the development along US 183.   

 
4. The general layout of the property is shown in Exhibit B.  The pumps may be 

located in front of the building on the northern side of the property, but shall not 
be located closer to the street than the building on the west or east sides. 

 
5. The lighting level at the boundary of the property shall be no more than 1.0 

foot-candle.   
 

 
C. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
 
Exhibit B (attached) is a conceptual site layout and land use plan intended to visually 
convey the proposed location of the commercial development.  This plan does not 
constitute plat or site plan approval. 



! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

US
 18

3

18
3A

 TO
LL

 R
D 

FR
 S

B

US
 18

3 N
B

CR 276

183A TOLL RD FR NB

US
 18

3 S
B

BRYSON RIDGE TRL

BRYSON RIDGE TRL

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-035

Exhibit B
Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan
The Triangle PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

This Plan is conceptual.  All applicable City Ordinances shall 
apply unless otherwise noted in the PUD Notes

PUMPS

PUMPS

BLDG





15. Zoning Case 15-TOD-Z-035: Hold a public hearing and consider action on rezoning of
one parcel of land generally located to the south of the intersection of Us 183 and 183A
Toll Road; 4.654 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel R433105. Currently, the property is
zoned PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development) and the
applicant is proposing to amend the PUD to designate the base zoning district as GC-3-B
(General Commercial) as permitted by the SmartCode, Leander, Williamson County,
Texas. Applicant: Bruce Nakfoor on behalf of West Texas Trading Retirement, Ltd.

a) staff Presentation
Robin Griffin, Senior Planner, stated that staff reviewed the request and
recommends approval of the amendment to the PUD with the base zoning
district as GC-3-B (General Commercial) and the waivers listed in the analysis.

b) Applicant Presentation
Bruce Nakfoor, applicant, was present for questions.

c) Open Public Hearing
Chairman Sokol opened the public hearing.
No one wished to speak.

d) Close Public Hearing
Chairman Sokol closed the public hearing.

e) Discussion
Discussion took place.

f) Consider Action
Commissioner Hines moved to approve with staff recommendation to amend
the PUD with a base zoning district of GC-3-B (General Commercial) and the
request waivers. Commissioner Vice Chair Allen seconded the motion. Motion
passed unanimously.

Meeting Adjourned at 9:15 p.m.

Chairman Sokol

ATtEST:

Ellen Pizalate, Secretary



AGENDA ITEM # 16 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
December 17, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning & Subdivision Cases 15-Z-012, 15-CP-003, & 15-PP-007:  

Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning and 
approval of the Bar W Commercial Concept Plan, Preliminary 
Plat, and PUD zoning for 49.737 acres, more or less, generally 
located to the southeast of the intersection of Ronald W Reagan 
Blvd and SH 29; WCAD Parcels R534768, R491376, R344166, 
R484168, R534750, and R328209.  Currently, the property is 
zoned Interim Single-Family Rural (SFR-1-B). The applicant is 
proposing to zone the property to Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) with a base zoning district of GC-3-C (General 
Commercial), Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: Pursuant to Article III, Section 16 (e) of the Composite Zoning 

Ordinance, an applicant may request that the PUD Conceptual Site 
Layout and Land Use Plan also be considered as the Concept Plan 
and Preliminary Plat.  This submittal includes the PUD zoning 
request, Concept Plan, and Preliminary Plat for review by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission 

 
Origination: Applicant: David Armbrust (Armbrust & Brown, PLLC) on behalf 

of Howard Barkley Wedemeyer and RR 29 Retail, LTD.  
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

recommended approval of staff recommendation with a 5 to 1 vote 
(Commissioner Hines opposing) at the December 10, 2015 
meeting. 

  
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Proposed Zoning Map 



 4. Location Map 
 5.   Aerial Map 
 6.  Proposed PUD Zoning, Concept Plan, & Preliminary Plat 
 7.  Notification Map 
 8.  Letter of Intent 
 9.  Ordinance 
 10. Minutes-Planning & Zoning Commission December 10, 2015 
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 12/11/2015 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-012,  

CONCEPT PLAN 15-CP-003, &  
PRELIMINARY PLAT 15-PP-007 

 
BAR W RANCH COMMERCIAL PUD 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Howard Barkley Wedemeyer and RR 29 Retail, LTD. 
 
Current Zoning: Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) 
 
Proposed Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development) with a base zoning district of GC-3-C 
  
Size and Location: The property is generally located to the southeast of the intersection of 

Ronald W Reagan Blvd and SH 29 and includes approximately 49.737 
acres. 

 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH OCL Undeveloped Property  

EAST OCL Large Lot Single-Family 

SOUTH OCL Undeveloped Property 

WEST Interim SFR-1-B Undeveloped Property – Proposed Wedemeyer Subdivision 
        

  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE & SMARTCODE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: 
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to allow for a cohesive 
development of a master planned commercial site which permits a commercial development 
located adjacent to intersection of SH 29 and Ronald W. Reagan Blvd.  The intent of this 
zoning district is to cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility with 
adjacent single-family residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the 
region. 
 

GC – GENERAL COMMERCIAL:   
Features:  Any use in LC plus bar, nightclub, entertainment venues, hospital, hotel, liquor store, 

office/warehouse, vehicle and equipment sales, leasing and repair, furniture sales, pet shop, 
wholesale activities less than 3,500 sq. ft. 

Intent:  Development of small to large scale commercial, retail, and commercial service uses 
located in high traffic areas.  Access to this component should be provided by an arterial street.  
The heaviest concentration of this component should be located at intersections of arterial 
streets. 

 
TYPE 3:   

Features:  Accessory buildings up to 30% of primary building; accessory dwellings; drive-thru 
service; limited outdoor display and storage; outdoor fueling and washing of vehicles; 
overhead service doors, no indoor parking required. 

Intent:   
(1) A Type 3 site component is intended to be utilized with LO and LC use components where 

adjacent to less restricted districts to provide for a land use transition. 
(2) This component is intended to be utilized with residential components where accessory dwellings 

or additional accessory structures are appropriate and are not provided for in the Type 1 or 2 site 
components. 

(3) This component is intended to be combined with LO, LC, GC, HC and HI components where it is 
appropriate to utilize the outdoor site area for outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and 
storage or accessory buildings. 

 
TYPE C (non-residential only):   

Features:  35% masonry (60% street facing); 3 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type C architectural component is intended to be utilized only in the LO, LC, GC, HC and HI 

use components for intermediate quality development.  
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component can help to provide for 

harmonious land use transitions from districts that are less restricted to districts that are more 
restricted. 

(3) This component is not intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 
that may be adjacent to less restricted districts. 

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide a balanced mix of complementary uses that support a strong and diverse tax base.  
 Position Leander as a destination for employers.  
 Focus commercial growth in Activity, Community and Neighborhood Centers. 
 Activity Centers are the shopping destinations within the community. They provide a 

wide range of commercial uses including restaurants and a mixture of big box (i.e., 
Target, Best Buy) and junior retail anchors (i.e., Ulta, PetSmart). Activity Centers should 
also be developed along an internal network of streets. Parking requirements should 
maximize land efficiency while encouraging pedestrian-oriented design. 
 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
The applicant has submitted a request for a PUD and a Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use 
Plan that can also be considered as the Concept Plan and Preliminary Plat as permitted by the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance.  This submittal includes the PUD zoning request, Concept Plan, 
and Preliminary Plat for review by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
The properties to the north, east, and south are located outside of the City Limits.  The property 
to the east is currently developed as large lot single family.  The properties to the north, south, 
and west are undeveloped.  The proposed Wedemeyer Subdivision is located on the west side of 
Ronald W. Reagan Blvd.  This project includes ten commercial lots and one water 
quality/detention lot.  Access will be provided from Ronald W. Reagan Blvd and SH 29, arterial 
class roadways.   
 
The applicant is requesting the PUD (Planned Unit Development) district in order to allow for a 
cohesive development of a master planned commercial site.  The applicant is proposing the GC-
3-C (General Commercial) district as the base zoning district.  The GC use component allows for 
the development of small to large scale commercial, retail, and commercial service uses located 
in high traffic areas.  The heaviest concentration of this use component is intended to be located 
at the intersection of arterial roadways. 
 
The requested Type 3 site component would permit outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor storage 
and/or display, overhead doors, drive-through service lanes and carwashes.  This use component 
is intended to be combined with the GC use component where it is appropriate to utilize the 
outdoor site area for outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and storage or accessory 
buildings. 
 
The Type C Architectural Component requires that at least 35% of all walls and at least 60% of 
the street facing walls are comprised of masonry.  In addition, three architectural features are 
required for buildings less than 50,000 square feet.  Buildings between 50,000 and 100,000 
square feet are required to have five design features and buildings over 100,000 are required to 
have six design features.  This architectural component is intended to be combined with 
appropriate use and site components, this component can help to provide for harmonious land 
use transitions from districts that are less restricted to districts that are more restricted. 
 

3 
 



Attachment # 1                 

This application includes the following higher standards and waivers. 
 

HIGHER STANDARDS WAIVERS 
COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE 
All buildings will conform to a master architectural 
theme and utilize complementary building 
materials. 

- 

- Classify the fuel station and carwash as primary 
buildings.   

Provide hours of operation limits for the grocery or 
dry goods sales. - 

- Allow for administrative approval of tree removal 
for trees less than 26 caliper inches. 

- Reduce the number of bicycle parking spaces. 

- Reduce the street and front setback for parking, 
aisle, and loading by 10 feet. 

- Remove the 10’ setback from ROW for drainage 
channels along SH 29. 

LED lighting shall be utilized in compliance with 
the City’s light regulations. - 

The sidewalk along Ronald Reagan Blvd shall be 
completed along the entire frontage prior to the 
occupancy of the initial building. 

- 

- Reduce the size of supporting columns from 8X8 
square to 6X6. 

SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE 

- Increase the block length requirements. 

- Eliminate riparian corridor setbacks to allow 
stormwater to be channelized underground. 

- Reduce riparian corridor setbacks to 20' off the 
centerline of the creek. 

SIGN ORDINANCE 
A master sign plan shall be prepared and all signs 
shall follow a consistent design theme. - 

Decrease the height of monument signs. Increase height, sign area and number of pylon 
signs. 

- Allow electronic signs for fuel pricing on pylons 
(currently only allowed on monuments). 

- Increase the size of wall signs. 

 
  

4 
 



Attachment # 1                 

This property is located within an Activity Center as identified by the Future Land Use Map in 
the Comprehensive Plan.  Activity Centers are regional shopping destinations within the 
community that provide a range of larger scale commercial uses.  These centers can include big 
box stores, retail anchors and a mix of commercial uses such as restaurants and retail.  These 
centers serve larger populations and can include up to 400,000 square feet of commercial space 
that can serve an area with a six mile range. 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested PUD, Concept Plan, and Preliminary Plat. 
 
The proposed PUD promotes a cohesive master planned commercial development that will 
include a master architectural theme and complementary building materials.  This project is 
located at the intersection of two arterials and is the appropriate location for the GC (General 
Commercial) use component.  In addition, the proposed waivers are balanced by the proposed 
higher standards and will provide for a high quality end product. 
 
This application effectively utilizes composite zoning to incorporate a master planned 
commercial development while maintaining high form standards.  The requested PUD meets the 
intent statements of the Composite Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

5 
 



RANCHO SIENNA

W SH 29

KAUFFMAN LOOP

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

CR 268

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±

0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-012  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - Bar W Comm PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



RANCHO SIENNA

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

W SH 29

KAUFFMAN LOOP

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

CR 268

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±

0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-012  Attachment #3 Proposed Zoning Map - Bar W Comm PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



W SH 29

CR 268

KAUFFMAN LOOP

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

CR 267

ARREZO LN

VIA DE SIENNA BLVD

PENNA LN

CORTONA LN

FLORENZ LN

MAGONA TRL

BONNET BLVD

MONTALCINO LN

SAN MARCO TRL

MA
RT

IN
O 

TR
L

RUFFINO LN

AU
BU

RN
 C

V

PALLAZO LN

VIA DE SIENNA BLVD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±

0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-012  Attachment #4 Location Map - Bar W Comm PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Town
Center

Mixed Use
Corridor



W SH 29

KAUFFMAN LOOP

CR 268

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

MAGONA TR
L

ARREZO LN

PENNA LN

CR 267

RUFFINO LN

PALLAZO LN

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-012 Attachment #5
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Bar W Commercial PUD

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Bar W Ranch Commercial Planned Unit Development 

I. Purpose and Intent 

A. The Bar W Ranch Commercial PUD (the “PUD”) consists of approximately 49.737 acres 
(the “Property" and shown in Exhibit “C”) located in Leander, Williamson County, 
Texas, attached to this PUD ordinance.  The PUD shall be developed as a Class “A” 
quality retail center with consistent and compatible architectural, landscaping and 
signage standards throughout the project.  A Class “A” retail center is commonly known 
to include new buildings with modern infrastructure located in prime locations with good 
access and professionally managed.  Development of the PUD is expected to add 
significant new tax revenues to the City’s tax base, create jobs and stimulate the overall 
local economy.  The PUD will encourage comprehensive master-planning of the Property 
and result in a high-quality project. 

B. The PUD’s purpose and intent is to create unified development standards for the 
Property.   

C. Except as otherwise provided in this PUD ordinance, the Property and PUD shall be 
governed by the ordinances of the City of Leander (the “City Code”).  This PUD 
ordinance is intended to supersede the City Code.  In the case that this PUD ordinance 
does not address a specific City requirement, the City Code shall apply.  In the event of a 
conflict between this PUD ordinance and the base zoning district found in the Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance, this PUD ordinance shall control.  Any capitalized terms 
used but not defined shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the City Code.   

D. The zoning for the Property shall be PUD, with a base zoning district of GC-3-C 
(General Commercial).  The base zoning district including the development standards 
and regulations set forth in this PUD are hereby approved as well; provided that no final 
plat for development of the Property in accordance with this PUD will be approved, no 
subdivision construction permits or site development construction permits for 
construction under any construction plans approved under this PUD will be issued, and 
no development of the Property under this PUD will occur unless and until a copy of a 
recorded deed showing the applicant for the final plat as the owner of the Property (the 
“Deed”) is submitted to the City, and provided further that the Deed and a final plat 
application for development of the Property in accordance with this PUD (the “Final Plat 
Application”) must be submitted to the City prior to April 30, 2017.  If (i) the Deed and 
the Final Plat Application are not submitted to the City prior to April 30, 2017, or (ii) 
prior to April 30, 2017, the owner of the Property submits a written notice to the City that 
the owner elects to develop the Property under GC-3-C zoning standards only this PUD 
will be terminated, then this PUD will expire; any concept plans, preliminary plats, and 
construction plans approved by the City for development of the Property in accordance 
with this PUD and the related development applications will expire; and the development 
of the Property thereafter shall comply with the GC-3-C zoning district regulations and 
any other applicable City regulations.  The owner of the Property may submit a new 
zoning application for the Property at any time.   

  

Page 1 of 14 
 



 
 
II. Applicability 

The zoning for the Property shall be PUD, with a base zoning district of GC-3-C (General 
Commercial).   

III. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 

Exhibit “B” attached is a conceptual development plan intended to visually convey the 
general layout for the Bar W Ranch Commercial Development.  The design is not final, and 
is subject to refinement during the platting and site planning stages.  A more detailed 
conceptual site plan will be submitted to the City with the site plan application.   This PUD 
zoning document does not constitute plat or site plan approval of the attached plan. 
 

IV. Use Standards 

A. Standards required for uses listed within Article IV of the City’s Composite Zoning 
Ordinance apply, except for accessory buildings and for the purpose of these sections the 
fuel station and car wash building shall be considered primary buildings and not 
accessory buildings/structures.   

B. The hours of operation for any grocery or dry goods sales shall be allowed to operate 
between 5:00 am and 1:00 am seven (7) days a week.  The fuel pumps and car wash shall 
be allowed to operate twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. 

V. Site Components 

A. Article V, Section 3, Type 3 (b) (2) of the City’s Composite Zoning Ordinance is 
amended as follows.   

1. Commercial fueling and washing of vehicles facilities shall be permitted in the PUD 
without regard of the number or distance from any other outdoor commercial fueling 
and washing of vehicles facilities located in the vicinity of the PUD.  City approval of 
the PUD shall serve as the reservation and/or designation of a vehicle washing and 
fueling facility within the PUD. 

VI. Site Standards 

Site standards will comply with Article VI of the City’s Composite Zoning Ordinance, 
except as amended below. 

A. Landscaping.  

1. Landscape Area.  Article VI, Section 1 (b) (9) (iii) of the City’s Composite Zoning 
Ordinance is amended as follows.  The PUD shall include landscaping of a minimum 
of fifteen percent (15%) based on the overall area of the Property.  The Property may 
be subdivided into multiple lots but the landscaping requirements shall be reviewed 
based on the overall Property. 

2. Trees.  Article VI, Section 1 (c) of the City’s Composite Zoning Ordinance is 
amended as follows.  Trees twenty-six caliper inches (26”) and larger must be 
reviewed by the Planning & Zoning Commission and receive City Council approval 

Page 2 of 14 
 



 
 

for removal.  Trees less than twenty-six caliper inches (26”) may be removed with 
administrative approval.   

3. Screening.  Article VI, Section 1 (d)(1)(iii) of the City’s Composite Zoning 
Ordinance is amended as follows.  All ponds shall be landscaped and a landscape 
plan shall be included with the submittal of the site development permit application.  
A wet pond shall not require screening to shield it from view so long as there are 
earthen materials utilized around the perimeter of such pond(s).  Any pond located 
within the PUD that requires fencing around the perimeter shall require screening that 
is in accordance with City Code and the PUD 

B. Parking.   Article VI, Section 3 (a) of the City’s Composite Zoning Ordinance is 
amended as follows.  The parking requirement within the PUD shall be calculated as one 
Mixed Use Retail center with a minimum parking ratio of one (1) space per two hundred 
twenty five (225) square feet.  This parking ratio shall be used throughout the PUD, 
regardless of the location or use of the individual lots.  The parking spaces shall be 
shared between all development within the PUD. 

C. Bicycle parking slots.  Article VI, Section 3 (d) of the City’s Composite Zoning 
Ordinance is amended as follows.  Bicycle parking slots shall be provided within the 
PUD at a rate of not less than one slot per sixty (60) parking spaces. The bicycle parking 
slots shall be located within the PUD at the discretion of the developer.   

D. Setbacks.  Article VI, Section 6 (a) of the City’s Composite Zoning Ordinance is 
amended as follows.  The minimum setbacks for parking, aisle, and loading are:  

 Setback 
Front 10’ 
Side 5’ 
Street Side 10’ 

 
E. Detention and drainage channel facilities.  The PUD is exempt from Article VI, 

Section 7 (b) (2) of the City’s Composite Zoning Ordinance regarding the ten (10’) foot 
setback for drainage channel facilities from the ROW as depicted on Exhibit “B”. 

F. Outdoor Lighting.  Article VI, Section 12 (a, c) of the City’s Composite Zoning 
Ordinance is amended as follows.  The lighting level at the PUD boundary shall average 
no more than 1.0 foot-candle.  LED type lighting shall be used for parking lot areas.   

G. Sidewalks.  Prior to occupancy of the initial building(s) within the PUD, the sidewalk 
adjacent to Ronald Reagan Boulevard shall be constructed along the entire frontage as 
depicted on Exhibit “B”. 

VII. Architectural Component 
 

Article VII, Section 3 (b) (2) of the City’s Composite Zoning Ordinance is amended as 
follows.  Openings in the front façade which lead into a vestibule which is not conditioned 
space shall count towards the minimum percentage of window and door openings. 

  

Page 3 of 14 
 



 
 
VIII. Architectural Standards 

All of the buildings in the PUD shall consist of a central architectural theme and utilize 
complementary building materials.  This materials palette and architectural theme shall be 
submitted with the first site development permit application.  Development of the PUD shall 
comply with the Architectural Standards of the City’s Composite Zoning Ordinance, unless 
otherwise specified below.   

A. Building over lot lines.  Article VIII, Section 4 of the City’s Composite Zoning 
Ordinance is amended as follows.  A building or structure may be constructed over lot 
lines if the lots are owned by the same owner, or a recorded maintenance and use 
agreement is in place between multiple owners. 

B. Supporting Columns.  Article VIII, Section 5 (g) of the City’s Composite Zoning 
Ordinance is amended as follows.  Supporting columns on the front of the structures 
may be constructed of exposed steel, clay brick, ledge stone, field stone, native stone, 
stucco, cementitious fiber planking or panel, aluminum, solid cedar, stripped cedar posts 
(sealed for protection), solid redwood, or similar materials and not less than six inches 
by six inches (6”x6”) square.  

IX. Subdivision Regulations 

Development of the PUD will comply with the City’s Subdivision Regulations, as modified 
below: 

A. Blocks and lots.  Section 45 (a) (3) of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance is amended as 
follows.  Blocks along arterial streets and blocks containing or proposed to contain 
primarily commercial or industrial uses shall not exceed a perimeter length of six 
thousand five hundred (6,500) feet.   

B. Riparian Zones.  Section 49 of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance is amended as follows 
and depicted on Exhibit “B”.   

1. If any on-site stormwater flows are channeled underground, no riparian corridor 
setback from the centerline of the applicable creek or swale is required. 

2. If any off-site stormwater flows are channeled in an open channel, then a minimum 
twenty foot (20’) riparian corridor setback from the centerline of the applicable creek 
or swale is required.   

X. Signs 

As it pertains to the number and size of signs the City’s sign ordinance shall be modified 
with the standards listed below.  In the event of a conflict between the City’s sign ordinance 
and this PUD ordinance, this PUD ordinance shall control.  Owner shall submit a master sign 
plan to the City, in accordance with the PUD regulations, in conjunction with the first site 
development permit application.  All of the signs within the PUD shall contain a consistent 
design theme comprised of materials consistent with the master materials palette and 
architectural theme as described in Article VIII. 

A. Pylon (“A”) signs. 

1. Two twenty-five foot (25’) high pylon signs are allowed. 

Page 4 of 14 
 



 
 

2. Each pylon sign may allow up to two hundred (200) square feet of sign area 
and allow for multiple tenants to be shown on each sign. 

B. Pylon (“B”) sign. 

1. One fifteen foot (15’) freestanding sign is allowed. 

2. The freestanding sign may include up to seventy-five (75) square feet of sign 
area. 

3. The Pylon B freestanding sign may incorporate a fuel pricing electronic sign 
of up to fifty (50) square feet of sign area.   

C. Monument signs. 

1. Nine (9) monument signs are allowed and each is intended for a single tenant. 

2. Each monument sign may be up to five feet (5’) tall. 

3. The monument signs may include up to forty (40) square feet of sign area. 

D. The structure of all signs shall incorporate complementary materials to the materials 
listed in the master materials palette and architectural theme as described in Article 
VIII used for the buildings.  Sign permits in compliance with the PUD may be 
administratively approved by the City. E.  All signs may include lighting in 
compliance with the City Code. 

F. Wall signs.  Buildings exceeding fifty thousand (50,000) square feet shall be 
permitted to display signage on the façade of the building at a rate of two (2) square 
feet of sign area for every one (1) foot of primary building facade frontage.  The 
City’s maximum of two hundred (200) square feet of sign area shall not apply for 
such buildings located within the PUD.   

G. The location of the signs shall generally comply with Exhibit B. 

Page 5 of 14 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 

 
 

 
 
  

Page 6 of 14 
 



 
 

 

Page 12 of 14 
 



 
 

   

Page 13 of 14 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 
Concept Plan & Preliminary Plat 

 

Page 14 of 14 
 



























R529026

R3
28

20
7

R4
91

07
9

R344166

R021711

R0
21

69
4

R4
85

00
1

R403274

R491376

R485002

R328209

R4
91

37
1

R485000

R491374

R4
85

00
3

R485225

R0
32

26
1

R0
21

69
1

R365
217

R484168

R529022

R022669

R315258

R319215

R418530

R529023

R485004

R4
51

80
3

R523598

R022670

R461956
R4

61
95

7

R022671

R464196

R523596

R484991

R484994

R523600

R484932

R484930

R505855

R021681

R484933

R403523

R484931

R484929

R484930

W SH 29

KAUFFMAN LOOP

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

CR 268

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-012  

Attachment #7
Notification Map
Bar W Commercial

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
Public Notification Boundary

City Limits
WCAD Parcels

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 8



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING SEVERAL PARCELS OF LAND 
FROM INTERIM SFR-1-B (SINGLE-FAMILY RURAL) TO PUD 
(PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT) WITH A BASE ZONING DISTRICT 
OF GC-3-C (GENERAL COMMERCIAL); MAKING FINDINGS OF 
FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcels of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property:”  That certain parcels of land being 49.737 acres, more or less, located 
in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “C”, generally 
located to the southeast of the intersection of Ronald W. Reagan Boulevard and SH 29; legally 
described as 49.737 acres more or less out of the Greenleaf Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5 more 
particularly described in Instrument Numbers 2008071853, 2008017931, 2015080652, 
2014092767, and 2015080651 Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, and 
identified by tax identification numbers R534768, R491376, R344166, R484168, R534750, and 
R328209.  
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) to PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) with a base zoning district of GC-3-C (General Commercial) known as the Bar W 
Commercial PUD.  The PUD shall be developed and occupied in accordance with this 
Ordinance, the PUD plan attached as Exhibits “A”, “B”, “C”, and “D” which are hereby adopted 
and incorporated herein for all purposes, and the Composite Zoning Ordinance to the extent not 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

amended by this Ordinance.  In the event of a conflict between the Composite Zoning Ordinance 
and the requirements for the Property set forth in this Ordinance, this Ordinance shall control.   
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 17th day of December, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 7th day of January, 2016. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Bar W Ranch Commercial Planned Unit Development 

I. Purpose and Intent 

A. The Bar W Ranch Commercial PUD (the “PUD”) consists of approximately 49.737 acres 
(the “Property" and shown in Exhibit “C”) located in Leander, Williamson County, 
Texas, attached to this PUD ordinance.  The PUD shall be developed as a Class “A” 
quality retail center with consistent and compatible architectural, landscaping and 
signage standards throughout the project.  A Class “A” retail center is commonly known 
to include new buildings with modern infrastructure located in prime locations with good 
access and professionally managed.  Development of the PUD is expected to add 
significant new tax revenues to the City’s tax base, create jobs and stimulate the overall 
local economy.  The PUD will encourage comprehensive master-planning of the Property 
and result in a high-quality project. 

B. The PUD’s purpose and intent is to create unified development standards for the 
Property.   

C. Except as otherwise provided in this PUD ordinance, the Property and PUD shall be 
governed by the ordinances of the City of Leander (the “City Code”).  This PUD 
ordinance is intended to supersede the City Code.  In the case that this PUD ordinance 
does not address a specific City requirement, the City Code shall apply.  In the event of a 
conflict between this PUD ordinance and the base zoning district found in the Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance, this PUD ordinance shall control.  Any capitalized terms 
used but not defined shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the City Code.   

D. The zoning for the Property shall be PUD, with a base zoning district of GC-3-C 
(General Commercial).  The base zoning district including the development standards 
and regulations set forth in this PUD are hereby approved as well; provided that no final 
plat for development of the Property in accordance with this PUD will be approved, no 
subdivision construction permits or site development construction permits for 
construction under any construction plans approved under this PUD will be issued, and 
no development of the Property under this PUD will occur unless and until a copy of a 
recorded deed showing the applicant for the final plat as the owner of the Property (the 
“Deed”) is submitted to the City, and provided further that the Deed and a final plat 
application for development of the Property in accordance with this PUD (the “Final Plat 
Application”) must be submitted to the City prior to April 30, 2017.  If (i) the Deed and 
the Final Plat Application are not submitted to the City prior to April 30, 2017, or (ii) 
prior to April 30, 2017, the owner of the Property submits a written notice to the City that 
the owner elects to develop the Property under GC-3-C zoning standards only this PUD 
will be terminated, then this PUD will expire; any concept plans, preliminary plats, and 
construction plans approved by the City for development of the Property in accordance 
with this PUD and the related development applications will expire; and the development 
of the Property thereafter shall comply with the GC-3-C zoning district regulations and 
any other applicable City regulations.  The owner of the Property may submit a new 
zoning application for the Property at any time.   

  

Page 1 of 14 
 



 
 
II. Applicability 

The zoning for the Property shall be PUD, with a base zoning district of GC-3-C (General 
Commercial).   

III. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 

Exhibit “B” attached is a conceptual development plan intended to visually convey the 
general layout for the Bar W Ranch Commercial Development.  The design is not final, and 
is subject to refinement during the platting and site planning stages.  A more detailed 
conceptual site plan will be submitted to the City with the site plan application.   This PUD 
zoning document does not constitute plat or site plan approval of the attached plan. 
 

IV. Use Standards 

A. Standards required for uses listed within Article IV of the City’s Composite Zoning 
Ordinance apply, except for accessory buildings and for the purpose of these sections the 
fuel station and car wash building shall be considered primary buildings and not 
accessory buildings/structures.   

B. The hours of operation for any grocery or dry goods sales shall be allowed to operate 
between 5:00 am and 1:00 am seven (7) days a week.  The fuel pumps and car wash shall 
be allowed to operate twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. 

V. Site Components 

A. Article V, Section 3, Type 3 (b) (2) of the City’s Composite Zoning Ordinance is 
amended as follows.   

1. Commercial fueling and washing of vehicles facilities shall be permitted in the PUD 
without regard of the number or distance from any other outdoor commercial fueling 
and washing of vehicles facilities located in the vicinity of the PUD.  City approval of 
the PUD shall serve as the reservation and/or designation of a vehicle washing and 
fueling facility within the PUD. 

VI. Site Standards 

Site standards will comply with Article VI of the City’s Composite Zoning Ordinance, 
except as amended below. 

A. Landscaping.  

1. Landscape Area.  Article VI, Section 1 (b) (9) (iii) of the City’s Composite Zoning 
Ordinance is amended as follows.  The PUD shall include landscaping of a minimum 
of fifteen percent (15%) based on the overall area of the Property.  The Property may 
be subdivided into multiple lots but the landscaping requirements shall be reviewed 
based on the overall Property. 

2. Trees.  Article VI, Section 1 (c) of the City’s Composite Zoning Ordinance is 
amended as follows.  Trees twenty-six caliper inches (26”) and larger must be 
reviewed by the Planning & Zoning Commission and receive City Council approval 

Page 2 of 14 
 



 
 

for removal.  Trees less than twenty-six caliper inches (26”) may be removed with 
administrative approval.   

3. Screening.  Article VI, Section 1 (d)(1)(iii) of the City’s Composite Zoning 
Ordinance is amended as follows.  All ponds shall be landscaped and a landscape 
plan shall be included with the submittal of the site development permit application.  
A wet pond shall not require screening to shield it from view so long as there are 
earthen materials utilized around the perimeter of such pond(s).  Any pond located 
within the PUD that requires fencing around the perimeter shall require screening that 
is in accordance with City Code and the PUD 

B. Parking.   Article VI, Section 3 (a) of the City’s Composite Zoning Ordinance is 
amended as follows.  The parking requirement within the PUD shall be calculated as one 
Mixed Use Retail center with a minimum parking ratio of one (1) space per two hundred 
twenty five (225) square feet.  This parking ratio shall be used throughout the PUD, 
regardless of the location or use of the individual lots.  The parking spaces shall be 
shared between all development within the PUD. 

C. Bicycle parking slots.  Article VI, Section 3 (d) of the City’s Composite Zoning 
Ordinance is amended as follows.  Bicycle parking slots shall be provided within the 
PUD at a rate of not less than one slot per sixty (60) parking spaces. The bicycle parking 
slots shall be located within the PUD at the discretion of the developer.   

D. Setbacks.  Article VI, Section 6 (a) of the City’s Composite Zoning Ordinance is 
amended as follows.  The minimum setbacks for parking, aisle, and loading are:  

 Setback 
Front 10’ 
Side 5’ 
Street Side 10’ 

 
E. Detention and drainage channel facilities.  The PUD is exempt from Article VI, 

Section 7 (b) (2) of the City’s Composite Zoning Ordinance regarding the ten (10’) foot 
setback for drainage channel facilities from the ROW as depicted on Exhibit “B”. 

F. Outdoor Lighting.  Article VI, Section 12 (a, c) of the City’s Composite Zoning 
Ordinance is amended as follows.  The lighting level at the PUD boundary shall average 
no more than 1.0 foot-candle.  LED type lighting shall be used for parking lot areas.   

G. Sidewalks.  Prior to occupancy of the initial building(s) within the PUD, the sidewalk 
adjacent to Ronald Reagan Boulevard shall be constructed along the entire frontage as 
depicted on Exhibit “B”. 

VII. Architectural Component 
 

Article VII, Section 3 (b) (2) of the City’s Composite Zoning Ordinance is amended as 
follows.  Openings in the front façade which lead into a vestibule which is not conditioned 
space shall count towards the minimum percentage of window and door openings. 

  

Page 3 of 14 
 



 
 
VIII. Architectural Standards 

All of the buildings in the PUD shall consist of a central architectural theme and utilize 
complementary building materials.  This materials palette and architectural theme shall be 
submitted with the first site development permit application.  Development of the PUD shall 
comply with the Architectural Standards of the City’s Composite Zoning Ordinance, unless 
otherwise specified below.   

A. Building over lot lines.  Article VIII, Section 4 of the City’s Composite Zoning 
Ordinance is amended as follows.  A building or structure may be constructed over lot 
lines if the lots are owned by the same owner, or a recorded maintenance and use 
agreement is in place between multiple owners. 

B. Supporting Columns.  Article VIII, Section 5 (g) of the City’s Composite Zoning 
Ordinance is amended as follows.  Supporting columns on the front of the structures 
may be constructed of exposed steel, clay brick, ledge stone, field stone, native stone, 
stucco, cementitious fiber planking or panel, aluminum, solid cedar, stripped cedar posts 
(sealed for protection), solid redwood, or similar materials and not less than six inches 
by six inches (6”x6”) square.  

IX. Subdivision Regulations 

Development of the PUD will comply with the City’s Subdivision Regulations, as modified 
below: 

A. Blocks and lots.  Section 45 (a) (3) of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance is amended as 
follows.  Blocks along arterial streets and blocks containing or proposed to contain 
primarily commercial or industrial uses shall not exceed a perimeter length of six 
thousand five hundred (6,500) feet.   

B. Riparian Zones.  Section 49 of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance is amended as follows 
and depicted on Exhibit “B”.   

1. If any on-site stormwater flows are channeled underground, no riparian corridor 
setback from the centerline of the applicable creek or swale is required. 

2. If any off-site stormwater flows are channeled in an open channel, then a minimum 
twenty foot (20’) riparian corridor setback from the centerline of the applicable creek 
or swale is required.   

X. Signs 

As it pertains to the number and size of signs the City’s sign ordinance shall be modified 
with the standards listed below.  In the event of a conflict between the City’s sign ordinance 
and this PUD ordinance, this PUD ordinance shall control.  Owner shall submit a master sign 
plan to the City, in accordance with the PUD regulations, in conjunction with the first site 
development permit application.  All of the signs within the PUD shall contain a consistent 
design theme comprised of materials consistent with the master materials palette and 
architectural theme as described in Article VIII. 

A. Pylon (“A”) signs. 

1. Two twenty-five foot (25’) high pylon signs are allowed. 

Page 4 of 14 
 



 
 

2. Each pylon sign may allow up to two hundred (200) square feet of sign area 
and allow for multiple tenants to be shown on each sign. 

B. Pylon (“B”) sign. 

1. One fifteen foot (15’) freestanding sign is allowed. 

2. The freestanding sign may include up to seventy-five (75) square feet of sign 
area. 

3. The Pylon B freestanding sign may incorporate a fuel pricing electronic sign 
of up to fifty (50) square feet of sign area.   

C. Monument signs. 

1. Nine (9) monument signs are allowed and each is intended for a single tenant. 

2. Each monument sign may be up to five feet (5’) tall. 

3. The monument signs may include up to forty (40) square feet of sign area. 

D. The structure of all signs shall incorporate complementary materials to the materials 
listed in the master materials palette and architectural theme as described in Article 
VIII used for the buildings.  Sign permits in compliance with the PUD may be 
administratively approved by the City. E.  All signs may include lighting in 
compliance with the City Code. 

F. Wall signs.  Buildings exceeding fifty thousand (50,000) square feet shall be 
permitted to display signage on the façade of the building at a rate of two (2) square 
feet of sign area for every one (1) foot of primary building facade frontage.  The 
City’s maximum of two hundred (200) square feet of sign area shall not apply for 
such buildings located within the PUD.   

G. The location of the signs shall generally comply with Exhibit B. 

Page 5 of 14 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 

 
 

 
 
  

Page 6 of 14 
 



 
 

 

Page 12 of 14 
 



 
 

   

Page 13 of 14 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 
Concept Plan & Preliminary Plat 

 

Page 14 of 14 
 



























11. Zoning & Subdivision Cases 15-Z-012, 15-CP-003, & 15-PP-007: Hold a public
hearing and consider action on the rezoning and approval of the Bar W
Commercial Concept Plan, Preliminary Plat, and PUD zoning for 49.737 acres,
more or less, generally located to the southeast of the intersection of Ronald W
Reagan Blvd and SH 29; WCAD Parcels R534768, R491375, R344166, R484168,
R534750, and R328209. Currently, the property is zoned Interim Single-Family
Rural (SFR-1-B). The applicant is proposing to zone the property to Planned Unit
Development (PUD) with a base zoning district of GC-3-C (General Commercial),
Leander, Williamson County, Texas. Applicant: David Armbrust (Armbrust &
Brown, PLLC) on behalf of Howard Barkley Wedemeyer and RR 29 Retail, LTD.

a) Staff Presentation
Robin Griffin, Senior Planner, stated that staff reviewed the request and
recommends approval of the PUD (Planned Unit Development) with a base
zoning district of GC-3-C (General Commercial).

b) Applicant Presentation
David Armbrust, applicant, explained the purpose for the zoning request.

c) Open Public Hearing
Chairman Sokol opened the public hearing.
No one wished to speak.

d) Close Public Hearing
Chairman Sokol closed the public hearing.

e) Discussion
Discussion took place.

f) Consider Action
Commissioner Schwendenmann moved to approve with staff recommendation
of PUD (Planned Unit Development) with a base zoning district of GC-3-C
(General Commercial). Commissioner Anderson seconded the motion. Motion
passed 5 to 1 with Commissioner Hines opposing.

Commissioner Hines opposed the request because he did not completely
understand the PUD regulations and the enforcement of the landscape
provisions.

12. Zoning Case 15-Z-020: Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning of a
parcel of land generally located to the southeast of the intersection of San Gabriel
Parkway and Bagdad Road/CR 279; 1.508 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel R476367.
Currently, the property is zoned LC-2-B (Local Commercial). The applicant is proposing
to zone the property to LC-3-A, Leander, Williamson County, Texas. Applicant: Danny
Martin on behalf of JSL Commercial Investments, LLC.

a) Staff Presentation
Martin Siwek, Planner, stated that staff reviewed the request and recommends
approval of the requested LC-3-A (Local Commercial).

b) Applicant Presentation
Danny Martin applicant explained the purpose for the zoning request.

c) Open Public Hearing
Chairman Sokol opened the public hearing.
No one wished to speak.



AGENDA ITEM # 17 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
December 17, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-Z-010:  Consider action on the rezoning of two 

parcels of land located at 1208 S. Bagdad Road for 51.84 acres more 
or less; WCAD Parcels R031330 and R031331.  Currently, the 
property is zoned MF-2-B (Multi-Family) and GC-3-C (General 
Commercial).  The applicant is proposing to zone the property to 
PUD (Planned Unit Development) with a base zoning district of MF-
2-A (Multi-Family), Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the final step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Anthony Goode on behalf of AHV-RS Trails at Leander, 

LLC 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  Commissioner Hines moved to approve the 

PUD (Planned Unit Development) with a base zoning district of MF-
2-A (Multi-Family) with the following conditions at the November 
24, 2015 meeting: 
1. The community will not be gated. 
2. The drives inside the property will meet the width requirements 

for private roads. 
3. Access to Winecup will be a regular access, not an emergency 

access with a crash gate. 
4. Install a painted crosswalk and appropriate signage (as determined 

by the Parks & Recreation and Public Works Departments) for the 
trail crossing at Bagdad Road. 

5. The Type A Architectural Component is modified to limit the 
amount of stucco that qualifies as masonry to 50%. 

6. The landscaping requirements shall be increased to 150%. 
7. Architectural renderings shall be submitted with at least seven 

visually distinct elevations. 
8. The leasing office shall be moved to front on Bagdad Road and 

the parking shall be placed behind the building. 
9. Limit the fencing adjacent to the riparian corridor to wrought iron 

or decorative tubular metal. 



10. Provide a definition of soil. 
11. Provide a landscape plan per single family home for a minimum 

of two homes. 
12. City Council defers the final decision until the Commission can 

review the renderings and the landscape plans. 
 

Commissioner Schwendenman seconded the motion.  Motion failed 
with a 3 to 4 vote (Anderson, Allen, Means, and Sokol opposing). 

 
Commissioner Hines moved to approve an alternate recommendation 
of  the PUD (Planned Unit Development) with a base zoning district 
of MF-2-A (Multi-Family) with the following conditions: 
1. Install a painted crosswalk and appropriate signage (as determined 

by the Parks & Recreation and Public Works Departments) for the 
trail crossing at Bagdad Road. 

2. The Type A Architectural Component is modified to limit the 
amount of stucco that qualifies as masonry to 50%. 

3. The landscaping requirements shall be increased to 150%. 
4. Architectural renderings shall be submitted with at least seven 

visually distinct elevations. 
5. The leasing office shall be moved to front on Bagdad Road and 

the parking shall be placed behind the building. 
6. Limit the fencing adjacent to the riparian corridor to wrought iron 

or decorative tubular metal. 
7. Provide a definition of soil. 
8. Provide a landscape plan per single family home for a minimum 

of two homes. 
9. City Council defers the final decision until the Commission can 

review the renderings and the landscape plans. 
 

Commissioner Means seconded the motion.  Motion passed with a 6 
to 1 vote (Cotten opposing). 

 
The City Council approved the PUD with the following conditions at 
the December 03, 2015 with a 6 to 1 vote (Abruzzese opposing): 
1. Limit the percentage of stucco that qualifies as masonry to 35% 
2. The landscaping shall be 150% of the single-family residential 

requirement 
3. Architectural renderings of at least seven distinct elevations that 

includes the building materials shall be included as an exhibit to 
the PUD and language added to stipulate that the submitted 
building plans shall be in substantial compliance with the 
renderings 

4. Limit fencing materials adjacent to the riparian corridor to 
wrought iron or decorative tubular metal 

5. Provide two sample landscape plans for the home sites as an 
exhibit to the PUD 

6. Buildings shall have staggered setbacks along the internal private 
drives 

 
 



Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Proposed Zoning Map 
 4.   Aerial Map 
 5. Location Map 
 6. Notification Map  
 7. PUD Notes and Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
 8. Letter of Intent  
 9.  Ordinance 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 12/04/2015 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-010 

 
TRAILS AT LEANDER PUD 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: AHV-RS Trails at Leander, LLC 
 
Current Zoning: MF-2-B (Multi-Family)  
 GC-3-C (General Commercial)   
  
Proposed Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development) with a base zoning district of MF-2-A 

(Multi-Family) 
  
Size and Location: The property is located at 1208 South Bagdad Road and is approximately 

51.84 acres in size. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH SFU-2-B Established Residential (Mason Creek & Magnolia Creek)  

EAST SFU/MH-2-B Established Residential (High Chaparral) 

SOUTH SFU/MH-2-B Established Residential (High Chaparral) 

WEST 
SFU-2-B 
LC-2-B 

PUD 

Established Residential (Mason Creek) 
Church 
NW Soccer Club 

        

  

 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
USE COMPONENTS:   

PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: 
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits a condominium regime detached residential development.  The 
intent of this zoning district is to cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility 
with adjacent single-family residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the 
region. 

  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 Establish high standards for development. 
 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting the PUD (Planned Unit Development) district in order to allow for 
the development of a detached condominium regime residential community.  The properties to 
the north, east and south are currently developed single-family neighborhoods.  The properties to 
the west are a mix of commercial uses and a single-family neighborhood on the west side of 
Bagdad Road. 
 
A PUD district can be an appropriate district in this situation because it offers the applicant the 
opportunity to design a zoning district that will provide for a condominium style residential 
development with limits to the permitted density.  The Composite Zoning Ordinance does not 
currently include a district that would permit this type of development.   
 
The applicant is proposing the MF-2-A base zoning district to accommodate this style of 
development.  The proposal includes 220 detached residential units.  The current zoning district 
would permit the development of multi-family units at approximately 18 units per acre.  The 
proposed zoning would yield a density of 4.25 units per acre.   
 
The applicant is proposing the Type A Architectural Component which would require all 
structures to be 85% masonry and include at least 5 architectural features.  In addition, this 

 



Attachment # 1                 

project will comply with the current standards regarding garages and parking.  The ordinance 
includes provisions requiring a variety of elevations and prohibiting all the homes to be identical 
on the same street.   
 
This project will continue the Mason Creek Trail from the existing segment located on the west 
side of Bagdad Road to the proposed segment that will be located in Magnolia Creek.  An 
amenity center including a pool, clubhouse, and pavilion will be provided as part of this project. 
 
They have also requested a waiver to the Riparian Corridor Setbacks.  Currently, the ordinance 
requires a 100 foot setback from centerline of any riparian corridor.  They have proposed to 
average the total riparian corridor setback to facilitate the placement of water quality 
improvements.  They will compensate for any encroachments by adding more land to the setback 
in other areas and restoring the corridor with native plans.  This corridor is currently channelized 
and does not support wildlife.   
 
Below, please find a table including the proposed higher standards and requested waivers 
associated with this project. 
 

HIGHER STANDARDS WAIVERS 

Type A Architectural Component - 

Reduced density (220 units vs +/- 918 
units) - 

Provide landscape plan for the 
restoration of the Riparian Corridor 

Allow for the riparian corridor buffer 
averaging 

- Allow ponds to encroach into the riparian 
corridor 

- Reduction in pond wall limitations 

Additional Landscaping Equal to the 
size of the Pond Area 

Not providing landscape area equivalent 
to the MF standards – 20% 

 
The frontage of this property along Bagdad Road is located within a Mixed Use Corridor.  This 
corridor provides for a variety of residential uses including small lot single-family, townhome, 
duplexes, and quadplexes.  The portion of the property that is not within the Mixed Use Corridor 
is within the Neighborhood Residential land use category which calls for single-family 
development of varying densities. 
 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The proposed PUD would permit a condominium regime with detached residential units on a 
multi-family site plan.  The proposed PUD includes the Type A architectural standard which is 
intended to ensure the highest quality architectural design.   
 
While the proposed multi-family base zoning district and restricted density of the PUD would be 
appropriate within the Mixed-Use Corridor component of the property, the application of the 

 



Attachment # 1                 

multi-family district to the remainder of the property within the Neighborhood Residential land 
use category is of concern to staff.  The Neighborhood Residential areas are intended for single-
family development, but the proposed PUD would allow for the development of a multi-family 
project on the entire site.  The site is currently zoned multi-family and the proposed PUD 
represents an improvement over the current zoning, but is still not entirely consistent with the 
intent of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
If the Planning & Zoning Commission chooses to recommend approval of the proposed PUD, 
staff suggests that the following provisions are included:   

• An architectural rendering for all buildings is provided that specifies the building 
materials, and architectural features. 

• The Type A standard is modified to stipulate a reduced percentage of stucco that is 
allowed to count toward the masonry requirement. 

• Increased landscaping and masonry screening walls are required within the setback areas 
along and at the entrance to the project at Bagdad Road, at the entrance to the project at 
Cotton Patch Trail and Winecup Drive. 

 



! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! !

! !

WESTVIEWMEADOWSSEC 4

LEANDERHEIGHTS, SEC 3

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 1

MAGNOLIA CREEK

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 2

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 1

MASON CREEK.SEC 1

MASON CREEK.SEC 3

MASON CREEK.SEC 4

MASON CREEK.SEC 5

FALCON OAKS,SEC 1

BLEDSOE
PARK

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 7
COUNTY GLEN,SEC 5

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 2

HERNANDO'S HIDEAWAY

HIGHCHAPARRAL

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 2

LEANDER
PUBLIC

LIBRARY

MASON
CREEK
PARK

MASON
HOMESTEAD

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 4

MASON RANCH, PH 1

^

^ ^

2B

2A

1B

2A

2A 2A1B

S 
W

ES
T 

DR

SO
NNY D

R

S BAGDAD RD

TOPAZ LN

LOS VISTA DR

EAGLES WAY

BONITA VERDE DR

MOON GLOW
 DR

TULA TRL

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

HI
GH

 C
HA

PA
RR

AL
 D

R

MICA LN

HONEYSUCKLE DR

PA
RK

WOOD
 DR

LANTANA DR

KALUGA TRL

TYRONE DR

COYOTE LN

TAMARAC TRL

GR
EE

NIN
G W

AY

MASON CREEK BLVD

SNOW GOOSE

W
OODDUCK TRL

ALSATIAN LN

TIE
RR

A 
AL

TO
 S

T

OLD BAGDAD RD

COTTO
N PA

TC
H TRL

DRAKE CV

CANVASBACK CREEK DR

CALLE ST

NIGHTSHADE LN

OLD QUARRY RD

REDBUD LN

MA
LL

AR
D 

LA
KE

 TR
L

CA
RT

O 
ST

FALCON OAKS DR

SHEILA DR

LA
UR

EL
 LN

LANTANA LN

CANADIAN CV

EM
BD

EN
 TR

L

GR
EY

BA
CK

 D
R

SALVIA CT

BLUEBONNET CT

ROCKROSE CT

CHICKORY CT

SORREL CT

SUNFLOWER CT

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-010  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - Trails at Leander PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! !

! !

WESTVIEWMEADOWSSEC 4

LEANDERHEIGHTS, SEC 3

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 1

MAGNOLIA CREEK

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 2

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 1

MASON CREEK.SEC 1

MASON CREEK.SEC 3

MASON CREEK.SEC 4

MASON CREEK.SEC 5

FALCON OAKS,SEC 1

BLEDSOE
PARK

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 7
COUNTY GLEN,SEC 5

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 2

HERNANDO'S HIDEAWAY

HIGHCHAPARRAL

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 2

LEANDER
PUBLIC

LIBRARY

MASON
CREEK
PARK

MASON
HOMESTEAD

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 4

MASON RANCH, PH 1

^

^ ^

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

2B

2A

1B

2A

2A 2A1B

S 
W

ES
T 

DR

SO
NNY D

R

S BAGDAD RD

TOPAZ LN

LOS VISTA DR

EAGLES WAY

BONITA VERDE DR

MOON GLOW
 DR

TULA TRL

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

HI
GH

 C
HA

PA
RR

AL
 D

R

MICA LN

HONEYSUCKLE DR

PA
RK

WOOD
 DR

LANTANA DR

KALUGA TRL

TYRONE DR

COYOTE LN

TAMARAC TRL

GR
EE

NIN
G W

AY

MASON CREEK BLVD

SNOW GOOSE

W
OODDUCK TRL

ALSATIAN LN

TIE
RR

A 
AL

TO
 S

T

OLD BAGDAD RD

COTTO
N PA

TC
H TRL

DRAKE CV

CANVASBACK CREEK DR

CALLE ST

NIGHTSHADE LN

OLD QUARRY RD

REDBUD LN

MA
LL

AR
D 

LA
KE

 TR
L

CA
RT

O 
ST

FALCON OAKS DR

SHEILA DR

LA
UR

EL
 LN

LANTANA LN

CANADIAN CV

EM
BD

EN
 TR

L

GR
EY

BA
CK

 D
R

SALVIA CT

BLUEBONNET CT

ROCKROSE CT

CHICKORY CT

SORREL CT

SUNFLOWER CT

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-010  Attachment #3 Proposed Zoning Map - Trails at Leander PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Proposed PUD



SONNY DR

S BAGDAD RD

TOPAZ LN

LOS VISTA DR

BONITA VERDE DR

MOON GLOW DR

HI
GH

 C
HA

PA
RR

AL
 D

R

TULA TRL

MICA LN

HONEYSUCKLE DR

LANTANA DR

KALUGA TRL

WOODDUCK TRL

COYOTE LN

ALSATIAN LN

SNOW GOOSE

TIE
RR

A A
LT

O 
ST

DRAKE CV

CANVASBACK CREEK DR

REDBUD LN
MA

LL
AR

D 
LA

KE
 TR

L

CA
RT

O 
ST

CALLE ST

LANTANA LN

EM
BD

EN
 TR

L
SALVIA CT

GR
EY

BA
CK

 D
R

BU
TT

ER
CU

P C
TBLUEBONNET CT

ROCKROSE CT

SORREL CT

SUNFLOWER CT

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-010 Attachment #4
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Trails at Leander PUD

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



2A

2B

1B

2A

2A
2A

1B

SO
NNY D

R

S BAGDAD RD

LOS VISTA DR

BONITA VERDE DR

TULA TRL

HIGH CHAPARRAL DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

HONEYSUCKLE DR

LANTANA DR

MOON GLOW
 DR

TYRONE DR

PARKW
OOD DR

SNOW GOOSE

TOPAZ LN

W
OODDUCK TRL

ALSATIAN LN

TIE
RR

A 
AL

TO
 S

T

OLD BAGDAD RD

TAMARAC TRL

COTTO
N PA

TC
H TRL

DRAKE CV

MASON CREEK BLVD

CALLE ST

LA
UREL

 LN

REDBUD LN

CA
RT

O 
ST

CANVASBACK CREEK DR

MA
LL

AR
D 

LA
KE

 TR
L

COYOTE LN

LANTANA LN

CANADIAN CV

NIGHTSHADE LN

OLD QUARRY RD

GR
EY

BA
CK

 D
R

SALVIA CT

LANTANA CT

W
INECUP CT

BLUEBONNET CT

CHICKORY CT

SORREL CT

SUNFLOWER CT

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-010  Attachment #5 Location Map - Trails at Leander PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Mixed Use
Corridor

Commercial
Corridor



R031330

R456350

R031241

R5
36

47
4

R031329

R370094

R031299

R5
24

31
3

R031331

R031333

R502535

R035554

R089757

R456
347

R035515R035577

R475157

R035536

R5
36

45
1

R370946

R0
35

56
1

R0
35

56
5

R0
35

56
2

R456348

R035449

R456319

R4
25

72
6

R035566

R456351

R524624

R035450

R035531

R035543

R0
35

56
3

R456
346

R0
35

56
0

R095037

R399013

R0
35

55
8

R0
35

55
9

R035540

R0
35

55
6

R0
35

55
7

R0
35

53
0

R0
35

52
9

R035542
R0

35
55

2

R035538

R0
35

55
1

R050208
R4

72
54

2
R035541

R0
35

52
8

R3
62

94
1

R0
35

52
7

R0
35

52
6R035523

R050207
R0

35
52

4
R0

35
55

0
R0

35
52

5
R4

72
54

1
R0

35
54

9
R035539

R035448

R035469

R0
35

51
1 R035510

R0
35

54
8

R035518

R035473

R035451
R0

35
51

2R035517

R0
35

58
8

R035444R035507R035594

R0
35

54
6

R035532

R035471

R035534
R035535

R0
35

54
5

R035445

R035513

R035447

R035472

R035498

R035466

R035468

R0
35

56
9

R035467

R035567
R035568

R035470

R035509R0
35

57
0

R035446

R035474

R369594

R425733

R035579

R035576

R035580

R035575

R456352

R035581R035582 R035589

R035605R035604R035608 R035603

R035572

R035521
R035522

R035606

R035520

R035602

R536407

R035585

R035598

R386841

R035573 R035519

R035586
R035587

R456336

R035571

R405795

R035574

R035583
R035584

R456345

R377529

R035506

R536458

R035505

R425719

R456318

R370081

R035502

R456337

R035503

R370088

R456283

R035500R035499

R377508

R486078

R035501

R456284

R386850

R370072

R456317

R370090

R456301R536473

R425718

R456344

R456335

R377507
R377501

R456302

R536472

R098670 R456343

R370942

R370943

R370938

R367899

R425720

R536359

R370078

R377517

R536459

R096004

R370941

R370105

R524876

R370944

R370104 R524929

R536460

R456285

R386877
R386882

R377515

R370091 R524928

R386851

R377499

R524882

R425717

R370064

R377509

R094042

R094749

R386869

R524941

R377530

R370939

R370087

R369591

R370085
R425730

R370945

R536433

R377521

R386859

R370080

R079982

R377511

R386842

R377506

R374120

R386860
R456322

R386878

R370093

R377504

R080020

R386852

R386870

R425729

R377502
R536461

R524886

R377522

R370084 R524903

R456320

R386834

R370070

R524927

R386893

R386861

R386892

R370106 R425721

R374115

R377514

R386853

R536434

R377520

R524877

R386858

R524862

R425731

R370071

R536449

R524864
R370102

R386848

R386891

R370089

R456305
R456303

R386890

R536425R536442

R370103

R370940

R456286

R425725

R377510
R524883

R386871

R425716

R386854

R386849

R425728

R456321

R370059

R536457

R094517

R524931

R377500

R370095

R536403

R370092

R386862

R536424

R377516

R524932

R386883

R374118

R386889

R524940

R536443

R524904

R370061

R456282

R377554

R377496

R080046

R386857 R536427

R524897
R377527

R456342

R536354

R536467

R456293

R536381

R536426

R536391

R536466
R386902

R377503

R456330

R536469

R536440

R456304

R456338

R524916

R456294

R536415
R536441

R377531

R456329

R536428

R370101

R370063

R377535

R524869

R370098
R370052

R370076

R536452

R524917

R536429
R456339

R370086

R370099

R035592

R370075

R524894

R374116

R370051

R386884

R386863

R370050

R035508

R524881

R524930

R524873R425727

R370049

R524896

R370096
R370055

R386887

R374117

R370058
R370056

R080028

R370054
R524942

R080022

R536430

R374119

R370053

R524872

R370073

R370060
R370083

R524887

R536439

R377512

R425722

R386843

R536406R080052

R536409

R524865

R386844
R456275

R524874

R536423
R536448

R524924
R524923

R524925

R386847

R536422

R080026

R386845 R536462

R035597

R094036

R080050

R425723

R094033

R536471R536470

R536419

R377534

R536410

R536445

R080062

R524893

R524880

R524933

R536437

R524934

R536447
R536421
R536420

R524878

R524935

R370065

R536355

R536411

R080060

R524866

R536432
R080048

R425724

R524937

R536444

R524895

R080070
R080024

R524891

R524867

R524938

R536404

R524911

R094040 R536358

R386873

R002388

R386901

R536402

R524909

R456333

R370067

R524871

R524908 R524913

R456292

R524915

R536414

R386866

R536405

R456291

R386898

R386840

R456327

R080064

R456331
R456341

R080066

R386865

R536390
R536382 R536387

R536388
R536386R536389

R536465

R524870
R524918

R456276

R524920

R456324

R536418

R456328

R456289

R456277

R386897

R080072

R456280

R386868

R456290

R080074

R456296
R377532

R456298R456295

R377518

R002391

R386875

R377546

R035464

R080054

R377547
R377539

R377544

R377523

R377552

R080068

R377540
R386881

R536392

R374114

R002397

R536399

R002424

R094055

R035475

R079910

R094017

R035465

R094150R094142
R094149
R080041

R094053
R080040

R094019

R080032

R094028

S BAGDAD RD

LOS VISTA DR

BONITA VERDE DR

±

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Public Notification Boundary
Subject Property
WCAD
City Limits

0 200

Feet

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

CITY MAPCITY MAPË

ZONING CASE 15-Z-010

Attachment #6
Notification Map
1605 & 1607 Tierra Alto



EXHIBIT A 
Trails at Leander - PUD 

 
A. Purpose and Intent 

The Trails at Leander PUD is composed of approximately 51.83 acres, as shown in EXHIBIT 
C (field notes). The contents of this PUD further explain and illustrate the overall appearance 
and function desired for this community. A Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
(EXHIBIT B) has been attached to this PUD to illustrate the design intent for the property 
and is intended to serve as a guide to illustrate the general community vision and design 
concepts.  It is not intended to serve as a final document. The Site Layout Plan depicts the 
residential products and open space areas that are contemplated within the community. 

 
B. Applicability and Base Zoning 

All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply with the City of Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance, except as established in EXHIBIT A.  

 
For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, base zoning of Multi-
Family (MF-2-A) has been selected from the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance for the 
single-family residential products proposed within the PUD.   
 
This PUD allows the flexibility to develop this unique project for smaller single family 
residential products and further define the various design and development elements 
effectively and efficiently.  In the case that this PUD does not address a specific City 
requirement, the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance shall apply. In the event of a conflict 
between this PUD and the base zoning district found in the Leander Composite Zoning 
Ordinance, this PUD shall control. 

 
C. CONCEPTUAL SITE LAYOUT AND LAND USE PLAN 

EXHIBIT C attached is a conceptual development plan intended to visually convey the 
design intent for the Trails at Leander community.  The design of the community is not final, 
and is subject to refinement during the platting and site planning stages.  This PUD zoning 
document does not constitute the plat or site plan approval of the attached plan. 
 

D. ALLOWABLE USE 
The use will be detached single-family dwellings.  The maximum dwelling count shall be 
220 units.   
 

E. LOT DESIGN STANDARDS 
The Trails at Leander development will comply with the Development Standards set forth in 
Table 1 for a condo regime site plan on private drives.  The following standards measure the 
setback from the drive. 
 

  

1 
 



EXHIBIT A 
Trails at Leander - PUD 

 
Table 1 – Development Standards 

 
 MF-2-A 

DETACHED DWELLINGS 

Front Setback 
(minimum from back of curb) 15 ft. Min 

Side Setback (minimum from back 
of curb) 10 ft. Min 

Building Setback 
(minimum setback between 
buildings) 

10 ft. Min 

Rear Setback 
(minimum) 20 ft. Min 

Perimeter Setback 20 ft. Min * 

Building Separation 
(minimum) 10 ft. Min ** 

Building Height 30 ft Max 

*Patios, decks and similar improvements shall have a minimum separate of 10 feet 
from all adjacent buildings. 
**Eave overhang is not included in calculations for minimum building separation.  A 
minimum of seven feet clear zone between building roof lines will be provided.   
 

F. DRIVE DESIGN 
The Trails at Leander community shall incorporate the following drive standards. 
1. The minimum driveway cross section of vehicular access within the PUD is 26 feet of 

pavement with a minimum 6 inch standing concrete curb on each side.  Driveway 
alignment, as well as building pad and driveway island locations may vary to 
minimize disturbance to significant existing trees and natural topographic features.   

2. The project shall be gated with provisions for a passenger vehicle turnaround outside 
of the gate at the main entrance on Bagdad Road.  

3. Street lights will not be required but are permitted.  Street light(s) will be provided at 
all PUD entrances from and exits to public roadways. 

4. Sidewalks or trails are required within 200 feet of all units.  Sidewalk and trails are 
required as shown on the City of Leander Transportation Plan including the 
connection of sidewalk along Bagdad and the Mason Creek Trail.  All sidewalks and 
trails shall be concrete.     

  

2 
 



EXHIBIT A 
Trails at Leander - PUD 

 
G. ARCHITECTURAL AND PARKING REQUIREMENTS 

All residential product within this project shall comply with the applicable standards of 
the Type A Architectural Components and the Architectural Standards for single-family 
districts as listed in Article VII and Article VIII of the Composite Zoning Ordinance 
unless modified herein.  Drives shall constitute streets with regard to this application of 
the ordinance. 

1. Each dwelling shall have a minimum of 1,300 square feet of living area and a 
maximum of 3,500 square feet. 

2. All dwellings shall be detached. 
3. PARKING:  A minimum of two garage-enclosed parking spaces and two additional 

off-street parking spaces (the garage driveway may be counted toward the provision 
of off-street parking) shall be provided per unit with three or more bedrooms. 

4. Dwelling units with three or more bedrooms and lots having an accessory dwelling:  
A minimum of two garage-enclosed parking spaces and two additional off-street 
parking spaces (driveway may be counted toward provision of off-street parking) 
shall be provided.   

5. Dwelling units with two or fewer bedrooms:  A minimum of one garage-enclosed 
parking space and two additional off-street parking spaces (driveway may be counted 
toward provision of off-street parking) shall be provided.   

6. Garages shall comply with Article VIII of the Composite Zoning Ordinance. 
 

H. FENCING AND LANDSCAPING 
1. This project shall comply with the applicable Landscape Requirements for single-

family districts as listed in Article VI of the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  In 
addition, this project shall comply with the multi-family provisions regarding Tree 
Preservation and Protection. 

2. Pond fences, if constructed, shall be wrought iron or decorative tubular metal.   
3. All invasive species shall be removed. 

 
I. AMENITIES 

1. A covered pavilion or patio, pool and clubhouse shall be provided for residents.  
Walking trails shall be installed at various locations throughout the community.   
 

J. RIPARIAN BUFFER AND PONDS 
1. Storm water pond grading, mass retaining walls and mass grading are allowed in the 

riparian buffer (Section 49 of the Subdivision Ordinance) at least 5 feet from a 
defined creek bank.  Native central Texas riparian plants will be installed in the 
riparian buffer to help improve water quality and habitat and to limit maintenance.  
Buffer averaging may be used.  Total proposed buffer must be equal to or greater than 
original buffer.       

2. An additional two 2-caliper inch trees and four 1 gallon shrubs per 600 sq. ft of the 
pond area is required as additional landscaping on the site.  Pond area is defined as 
the area inundated with storm water at the elevation of the top of the pond outlet 
structure weir.   

3 
 



EXHIBIT A 
Trails at Leander - PUD 

 
3. Ponds may be installed in the Riparian Buffer.  Above ground structural stabilization 

shall be limited to the use of native stone (except for the outlet structures) and shall be 
minimized in locations where it is visible from adjacent developments.   

4. A landscape plan showing the riparian corridor restoration will be required at the site 
development stage.   

5. Ponds will meet the current ordinance requirement regarding perimeter walls for the 
aggregate of the four ponds and no pond may exceed 50% perimeter walls.   

 

4 
 





rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 8





Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING TWO PARCELS OF LAND 
FROM MF-2-B (MULTI-FAMILY) AND GC-3-C (GENERAL 
COMMERCIAL) TO PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT); 
MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED 
MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcels of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property:”  That certain parcels of land being 51.84 acres, more or less, located in 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “B”, generally 
located approximately 1,200 feet to the south of the intersection of Bagdad Road and Sonny 
Drive on the east side of Bagdad Road; legally described as 51.84 acres more or less out of the E. 
D. Harmon Survey, Abstract No. 6 more particularly described in Document Number 2015001258 
Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, and identified by tax identification number 
R031330 and R031331.  
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from MF-2-B (Multi-Family) and GC-3-C (General Commercial) to PUD 
(Planned Unit Development) known as the Trails of Leander PUD.  The PUD shall be developed 
and occupied in accordance with this Ordinance, the PUD plan attached as Exhibits “A”, “B”, 
and “C”, which are hereby adopted and incorporated herein for all purposes, and the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance to the extent not amended by this Ordinance.  In the event of a conflict 
between the Composite Zoning Ordinance and the requirements for the Property set forth in this 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Ordinance, this Ordinance shall control.   
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 3rd day of December, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 17th day of December, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



EXHIBIT A 
Trails at Leander - PUD 

 
A. Purpose and Intent 

The Trails at Leander PUD is composed of approximately 51.83 acres, as shown in EXHIBIT 
C (field notes). The contents of this PUD further explain and illustrate the overall appearance 
and function desired for this community. A Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
(EXHIBIT B) has been attached to this PUD to illustrate the design intent for the property 
and is intended to serve as a guide to illustrate the general community vision and design 
concepts.  It is not intended to serve as a final document. The Site Layout Plan depicts the 
residential products and open space areas that are contemplated within the community. 

 
B. Applicability and Base Zoning 

All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply with the City of Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance, except as established in EXHIBIT A.  

 
For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, base zoning of Multi-
Family (MF-2-A) has been selected from the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance for the 
single-family residential products proposed within the PUD.   
 
This PUD allows the flexibility to develop this unique project for smaller single family 
residential products and further define the various design and development elements 
effectively and efficiently.  In the case that this PUD does not address a specific City 
requirement, the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance shall apply. In the event of a conflict 
between this PUD and the base zoning district found in the Leander Composite Zoning 
Ordinance, this PUD shall control. 

 
C. CONCEPTUAL SITE LAYOUT AND LAND USE PLAN 

EXHIBIT C attached is a conceptual development plan intended to visually convey the 
design intent for the Trails at Leander community.  The design of the community is not final, 
and is subject to refinement during the platting and site planning stages.  This PUD zoning 
document does not constitute the plat or site plan approval of the attached plan. 
 

D. ALLOWABLE USE 
The use will be detached single-family dwellings.  The maximum dwelling count shall be 
220 units.   
 

E. LOT DESIGN STANDARDS 
1. The Trails at Leander development will comply with the Development Standards set forth 

in Table 1 for a condo regime site plan on private drives.  The following standards 
measure the setback from the drive. 

2. Buildings shall have staggered setbacks along the internal private drives. 
 

  

1 
 



EXHIBIT A 
Trails at Leander - PUD 

 
Table 1 – Development Standards 

 
 MF-2-A 

DETACHED DWELLINGS 

Front Setback 
(minimum from back of curb) 15 ft. Min 

Side Setback (minimum from back 
of curb) 10 ft. Min 

Building Setback 
(minimum setback between 
buildings) 

10 ft. Min 

Rear Setback 
(minimum) 20 ft. Min 

Perimeter Setback 20 ft. Min * 

Building Separation 
(minimum) 10 ft. Min ** 

Building Height 30 ft Max 

*Patios, decks and similar improvements shall have a minimum separate of 10 feet 
from all adjacent buildings. 
**Eave overhang is not included in calculations for minimum building separation.  A 
minimum of seven feet clear zone between building roof lines will be provided.   
 

F. DRIVE DESIGN 
The Trails at Leander community shall incorporate the following drive standards. 
1. The minimum driveway cross section of vehicular access within the PUD is 26 feet of 

pavement with a minimum 6 inch standing concrete curb on each side.  Driveway 
alignment, as well as building pad and driveway island locations may vary to 
minimize disturbance to significant existing trees and natural topographic features.   

2. The project shall be gated with provisions for a passenger vehicle turnaround outside 
of the gate at the main entrance on Bagdad Road.  

3. Street lights will not be required but are permitted.  Street light(s) will be provided at 
all PUD entrances from and exits to public roadways. 

4. Sidewalks or trails are required within 200 feet of all units.  Sidewalk and trails are 
required as shown on the City of Leander Transportation Plan including the 
connection of sidewalk along Bagdad and the Mason Creek Trail.  All sidewalks and 
trails shall be concrete.     

  

2 
 



EXHIBIT A 
Trails at Leander - PUD 

 
G. ARCHITECTURAL AND PARKING REQUIREMENTS 

All residential product within this project shall comply with the applicable standards of 
the Type A Architectural Components and the Architectural Standards for single-family 
districts as listed in Article VII and Article VIII of the Composite Zoning Ordinance 
unless modified herein.  The residential product shall substantially conform to the 
rendering shown in Exhibit D.  Drives shall constitute streets with regard to this 
application of the ordinance. 

1. Each dwelling shall have a minimum of 1,300 square feet of living area and a 
maximum of 3,500 square feet. 

2. All dwellings shall be detached. 
3. Parking:  A minimum of two garage-enclosed parking spaces and two additional off-

street parking spaces (the garage driveway may be counted toward the provision of 
off-street parking) shall be provided per unit with three or more bedrooms. 

4. Dwelling units with three or more bedrooms and lots having an accessory dwelling:  
A minimum of two garage-enclosed parking spaces and two additional off-street 
parking spaces (driveway may be counted toward provision of off-street parking) 
shall be provided.   

5. Dwelling units with two or fewer bedrooms:  A minimum of one garage-enclosed 
parking space and two additional off-street parking spaces (driveway may be counted 
toward provision of off-street parking) shall be provided.   

6. Garages shall comply with Article VIII of the Composite Zoning Ordinance. 
7. The Type A Architectural Component is modified to limit the amount of stucco that 

qualifies as masonry to 35% for any structure. 
 

H. FENCING AND LANDSCAPING 
1. This project shall be 150% of the Landscape Requirements for single-family districts 

as listed in Article VI of the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  The landscaping shall 
substantially conform to the rendering shown in Exhibit E.  In addition, this project 
shall comply with the multi-family provisions regarding Tree Preservation and 
Protection.  

2. Pond fences and fences located adjacent to the riparian corridor, if constructed, shall 
be wrought iron or decorative tubular metal.   

3. All invasive species shall be removed. 
 

I. AMENITIES 
1. A covered pavilion or patio, pool and clubhouse shall be provided for residents.  

Walking trails shall be installed at various locations throughout the community.   
 

J. RIPARIAN BUFFER AND PONDS 
1. Storm water pond grading, mass retaining walls and mass grading are allowed in the 

riparian buffer (Section 49 of the Subdivision Ordinance) at least 5 feet from a 
defined creek bank.  Native central Texas riparian plants will be installed in the 
riparian buffer to help improve water quality and habitat and to limit maintenance.  
Buffer averaging may be used.  Total proposed buffer must be equal to or greater than 
original buffer.       

3 
 



EXHIBIT A 
Trails at Leander - PUD 

 
2. An additional two 2-caliper inch trees and four 1 gallon shrubs per 600 sq. ft of the 

pond area is required as additional landscaping on the site.  Pond area is defined as 
the area inundated with storm water at the elevation of the top of the pond outlet 
structure weir.   

3. Ponds may be installed in the Riparian Buffer.  Above ground structural stabilization 
shall be limited to the use of native stone (except for the outlet structures) and shall be 
minimized in locations where it is visible from adjacent developments.   

4. A landscape plan showing the riparian corridor restoration will be required at the site 
development stage.   

5. Ponds will meet the current ordinance requirement regarding perimeter walls for the 
aggregate of the four ponds and no pond may exceed 50% perimeter walls.   

 

4 
 





12.02.15 CONCEPTUAL STREET SCENE
TODD PALMAER| 40’ VALUE SERIES

rstover
Text Box
EXHIBIT D



PRIVATE DRIVE 

Driveway 

Driveway 

Parking 

Typical Unit 

 Footprint 

Typical Unit 

 Footprint 

Existing Trees to 
Remain 

Existing Trees to 
Remain 

Existing Trees to 
Remain 

Existing Trees to 
Remain 

Native Area 

Native Area 

Native Area 

Native  
Area 

Turf 

Turf 

Turf 

Turf 

Turf 

Turf 

STAGGERED SETBACKS 

Fence 

Typical Landscape Schematics Exhibit 
1. 150% of the landscape requirement  will be installed in the front of each unit 

within the project. 
2. Tree credits will be utilized to satisfy a portion of the tree planting  

requirements of 3 trees per unit 

3. The shrub requirement of 4.5– 1 gallon and 4.5- 5 gallon shrubs per unit will be                                             
averaged across the entire development. 

4. Native areas will remain undisturbed or in case of disturbance during construction.    

restored to native conditions. 
5. Ratio of plant materials will vary to assure not more than 50% of any plant is used 

to satisfy the requirement.  

6. Low water demanding landscapes, will be used and will should include plants  
recommended by the Lower Colorado River Authority’s Texas Hill Country Landscape 

Option Specifications.  

7. The development will comply with the  City Landscape Ordinance in all respects not 
altered by the PUD. 

5 gallon shrub 

1 gallon shrub 

2” minimum  caliper tree 

rstover
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



AGENDA ITEM # 18 

 
Executive Summary 

 
December 17, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Consideration of approval for funds for a sculpture in Benbrook Ranch Park 
Sponsored by Council Member Jeff Seiler 
 
Background: On November 11, 2015 the Leander Public Arts Commission unanimously 
endorsed a recommendation to the City Council to fund a sculpture at the Benbrook Ranch Park 
Baseball Complex in an amount not to exceed $10,000.  A conceptual drawing of the proposed 
sculpture is attached.  The sculpture will recognize eight iconic baseball venues and the 
distances to each location (Astrodome, Cooperstown, Dodger Stadium, Fenway Park, Omaha, 
Williamsport, Wrigley Field, and Yankee Stadium).    
 
The Public Arts Commission was created in 2008 to advocate for art and make 
recommendations to the Mayor, Council and City Manager relative to artistic endeavors 
involving the City. Funding for Art Commission projects comes from two sources: 1) Private 
donations; and 2) 1% of the construction cost of municipal building projects.  Funds received are 
deposited into the Public Art Fund and may be used for projects with Council approval.   
 
Funds for this project are available in the FY 2015-16 Budget.  Those funds were made 
available from the Benbrook Ranch Park Baseball Complex Project.   
 
Financial Consideration: Up to $10,000  
  
Recommendation:  The Public Arts Commission respectfully recommends Council approval to 
expend up to $10,000 to commission and construct a sculpture for the Benbrook Ranch Park 
Baseball Complex. (Public Arts Fund 10-01-8207) 
 
Attachments: Sculpture Concept Drawing 
 
Prepared by:  Stephen Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 





AGENDA ITEM # 19 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
December 17, 2015 

 
Council Agenda Subject: Consideration of Task Order HVJ-03 with HVJ Associates for professional 
engineering services including Planning, Design, Bidding, Award, and Construction Phase Services for 
Street Maintenance and Rehabilitation. 
 
Background:  HVJ recently completed a Pavement Management Study – a formal assessment of the 
nearly entire inventory of City-maintained streets, approximately 174 centerline miles.  Based on the 
reports results, HVJ will provide these services for upcoming street maintenance and rehabilitation 
projects in FY15-16.  The proposed scope of work includes: 
 

1. Develop a multi-year schedule for future street maintenance and rehabilitation project budgets. 
2. Prepare Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimate (PS&E) Documents.  
3. Bidding and contract award services 
4. Construction Inspection and Testing Services 

 
Origination:  Patrick A. Womack, P.E., Public Works Director 
 
Financial Consideration: $88,900.00, from the General Fund, Public Works #01-21-5600 (Contract 
Labor)   
  
Recommendation: Staff respectfully requests authorization for the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute HVJ Task Order No. 3 
  
Attachments: HVJ Task Order 3 (including HVJ Proposal No. AP1415661) 
 
Prepared by: Patrick A. Womack, P.E., Public Works Director 



















AGENDA ITEM # 20 
 

 

Executive Summary 

December 17, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Water Supply Update  
 
 Background:  Recent fall rains in the Lower Colorado River watershed have increased 
the combined water supply in both Lakes Travis and Buchanan from 767,185 acre-feet on 
May 1st to 1,686,236 acre-feet of combined storage as of November 10thth for a combined 
storage of 78% full.  Combined Storage has increased approximately 8% since November 
2nd.  The attached Leander Water Use Table and Graph compare recent water use in 
November 2015 to November 2014.     
 
Origination:  Patrick A. Womack, P.E. Public Works Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  None 
 
Recommendation:   None 
 
Attachments: City of Leander Water Use Table & Graph 
 
Prepared by:  Patrick A. Womack, P.E. Public Works Director 



2014

Day Oct SCWTP November November

1 8.00 4.10 3.46

2 8.10 4.42 3.69

3 7.20 4.31 3.91

4 7.40 4.71 4.02

5 6.60 4.01 3.31

6 8.10 4.40 3.22

7 8.20 3.61 3.13

8 9.10 3.81 3.25

9 5.60 4.01 3.90

10 7.10 4.31 3.41

11 8.10 4.21 4.64

12 7.50 4.61 4.24

13 8.00 4.01 3.72

14 8.60 3.01 3.42

15 8.50 3.81 3.21

16 7.10 3.01 3.50

17 7.20 4.01 2.99

18 7.30 4.11 3.91

19 6.20 4.61 3.64

20 7.40 3.61 3.78

21 7.10 4.51 2.94

22 5.20 3.41 2.72

23 5.10 4.11 2.97

24 3.40 4.41 2.94

25 4.30 4.21 3.83

26 4.40 3.81 4.12

27 5.30 3.51 4.08

28 3.50 3.41 2.18

29 3.80 3.91 2.94

30 1.90 3.51 2.73

31 2.70

2014

(MG) Oct SCWTP November November

Total 198.0 119.5 103.8

Average 7.17 4.05 3.50

Peak Day 9.10 4.71 4.64

Year 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Month/Day 8/8 8/3 8/7 8/13 8/9 5/7 9/10 8/12

Peak Day (MG) 9.18 7.79 6.75 7.44 8.38 8.86 9.10 11.90

Annual (MG) 1,359 1,171 1,160 1,535 1,380 1,404 1,512 1,602 (Jan 1 - November 30, 2015)

City of Leander Water Use (MG)

Historical Water Use

2015

2015

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50

4.00

4.50

5.00

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

M
ill

io
n

s 
o

f 
G

al
lo

n
s 

Day 

CITY OF LEANDER WATER USE 

November 2015

November 2014


	Agenda
	Item # 5
	Item # 6
	Item # 7
	Item # 8
	Item # 9
	Item # 10
	Item # 11
	Item # 12
	Item # 13
	Item # 14
	Item # 15
	Item # 16
	Item # 17
	Item # 18
	Item # 19
	Item # 20



